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Questions.

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY.

THURSDAY, 18 Ocroser, 1917,

The SreArer (Hon. W. McCormack, Cawrns)
took the chair at half-past 3 o’clock.

PAPERS.

The following papers, laid on the table,
were ordered to be printed:—
Annual report of the Commissioner of
Public Health,
Forty-first report of the Secret f
Public Instruction. e

QUESTIONS.

CHARTER OF 8.8. “ HOPEWELL.”
Hon. W. D. ARMSTRONG (Zocky
asked the Chief Secretary— ( ver)

“1. Did_the s.s. ‘Hopewell’ recently
sail from Maryborough to Sydney under
charter to the Queensland Government?

“ 2. Was there any arrangement made
between the Queensland Government and
the owners of the s.s. ‘ Hopewell ’ as
to the rates to be charged upon general
me;c%a{lc%se betwseen—(a) Maryborough
and Brisbane to dney; () S [
Brisbane? ydney; {b) Sydney to

“3. Is he aware that the Common-
wealth Government by regulation of 16th
May, 1916, laid down the rates of freight-
age on general merchandise between
Sydney and Brisbane at 16s, per ton,
unless special permission was given to
charge rates in excess of that figure?

“4. Ts he aware that the owners of
the s.s. ‘ Hopewell ’ are demanding 35s.
per ton as freightage on general mer-
chandise, carried from Sydney to Bris-
bane?

“5. Is he aware that the s.s. ‘ Hope-
well” is now loading in Brisbane for
ports north of Brisbane, and that the
owners are demanding freights double
those allowed by the Commonwealth
regulations ?”’
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The PREMIER (Hon. T. J. Ryan, Barcoo}
replied—

“1 No. T > Government undertook
to provide the recessary labour to dis-
charge and reload the vessel in Sydney.

“ 2 to [. See answer to No. 1.”

DRYSDALE BROTHERS AN. ‘INKERMAN Estate
REPURCHASE.

Mr. COLLINS (Lowen) asked the Secre-
tary for Public Lands—

“Was any agreemt entered into by
the Government at the time the Inkerman
Tistate was repurchased by which Drys-
dale Brothers were compelled to crush
all the cane grown on the estate by the
selectors 7"’ .

The SECRETARY FOR PUBLIC LANDS
(Hon. J. M. Hunter, Maranoa) replied—

“ The agreement merely stipulated for
the erection cf a mill with a capacity of
12.000 to 15,000 tons; the erection to be
completed not later than lst July, 1913,
but, unfortunately, nothing is cortained
in the agreement to compel the owners
to crush selectors’ cane.”

STATEMENT MADE IN LAND COURT.

Mr. MORGAN (Murilla) gave notice of his
intention to ask . question with regard to
certa’ 1 chaiges made by a member of the
T.and Court, and was proceeding to read the
statement made—

The SPEAKER: Order! The hon. mem-
ber is reading a long statement while giving
notice of a question. Fe must simply ask the
question.

Mr. MORGAN : There are only two more
lines.

The SPEAKER : If I #sk the hon. gentle-
man later on tc revise his question he will
know that I reminded him of it when he was
giving notice.

Mr, MORGAN : T thor ~ht it better to read
the whole statemert; I «’d not want to sup-
press anything.

STATE IRON AND STEEL WORKS
BILL.

INITIATION IN COMMITIEE.

The SPEAKER: In the absence of the
Chairman of Committees, I call upon the
hon. member for Mundingburra to take the
chair.

Mr. Forey took the chair accordingly.

The PREMIER, in moving—

«“That it is desirable to introduce a
Bill to authorise the establishment, con-
¥inuance, and carrying on of State irom
and steel works and other industries,
and for other purposes,”

said he did not propose to enlarge upon what
he had said yesterday in connection with
the Bill

Hon. J. Tormre: You might tell us some-
thing about *‘ other industries.”

The PREMIER: He went fully into_the
contents of the Bill yesterday, although it
was rather unusual at that stage, but he did
it o save discussion when the Bill was being
initiated in Committee. Consequently he
would confine himself to moving the motion.

Hon. T. J. Ryan.]
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Hon. J. TOLMIE (Toowoomba): There
were two points he would like to get some
information on—namely, what ‘‘ other indus-
tries’ were referred to, and what  other
purposes”’ were proposed. He knew that
the Premier went fully into the details of
the measure so far as they related to iron
and steel works, and he was not asking for
any more information on that point, but he
would like some information about the other
industries,

Hon. W. D. ArmsrronGg: Make it “‘ other
industries connected therewith.”

The PrEMIER: It is better to have a com-
prchensive wording.

Hon. W. D. ArmstronG: That shows it is
loaded. Tt is loaded like everything else.

Hown. J. TOLMIE: The Opposition were
afraid that the Bill was -loaded when it
proposed to include ‘‘ other industries” and
“ other purposes.” He was sorry that the
Premier_could not see his way to give any
further information.

The PreMIER: I will give you that infor-
mation,

Mr. PayNE interjected.

Hon. J. TOLMIE: He heard the hon.
member for Mitchell interjecting. He
seemed to come into conflict with that hon.
member on this Bill, but he hoped that the
cordial relations which had always existed
between them would continue to prevail.
He hoped the Premier would give some
information on the two points he had raised,
because the Premier on more than one occa-
sion had said that he made pitfalls into
which members of the Opposition had fallen.

The Premier: No: you said it.

Hov. J. TOLMIE: The hon. gentleman
gloated over the fact that the Opposition fell
into a pit, and that being the case they
wanted to make it clear that there were
no such pitfalls in this case.

Mr. BEBBINGTON (Drayton)
out that the words * other
appeared in another Bill before.

The PREMIER: What Bill?

. Mr. BEBBINGTON : The Sugar Acquisi-
tion Bill.

The PremiER: No, they did not.

Mr. BEBBINGTON: Well, the words
“ other commodities,” which was practically
the same, appeared in the Sugar Acquisition
Bill. If they allowed the words ° other
industries” to remain in the Bill, then the
Government would be able to take over any
industries. They had it from the Premier
himself that they could take over anything
under the Sugar Acquisition Bill. He did
not object to the spending of a few thousand
pounds in establishing steel and iron works,
even if they failed.

_ The SeorETary ror Pupric LanDS inter-
jected.

Mr. BEBBINGTON :He was not like the
Minister for Lands and did not shuffle and
give two or three meanings to everything he
said. He always said what he meant. It
was a good thing to develop the resources
of the State, because if it succeeded the whole
State would benefit.

Mr. GLEDSON : Your leader is opposed to it.

Mr. BEBBINGTON: Well, he was not
opposed to it, because the whole of the coun-
try would benefit. They had asked the
Minister for Agriculture to subsidise agents

[Hon. J. Tolmie.

pointed
industries’’

[ASSEMBLY.]

Steel Works Bill.

to go to the Kast to open up markets for
the primary producers, but he laughed ab
the idea and would not give them £1 of
subsidy. They were prepared to send a
representative of the Co-operative Company
to the East to open up markets if the Minis-
ter would assist them. He thought it was a
good thing to open up any industry in the
State, and if the Bill now before them had
the result of establishing successful works
the whole of Australia would benefit.

Hon. W. D. ARMSTRONG (Lockyer): We
heard the Premier say the other day that he
was the leader of a party of conciliation.
The whole of the members of the House
were in favour of this measure, and all they
asked was that after the words ‘“ and other
industries ” in the motion, the hon. gentle-
man would insert the words “connected
therewith.” If the hon. gentleman would
do that it would save a great deal of useless
debate.

The PREMIER: He thought he had ex-
plained yesterday what the ¢ other indus-
tries”’ were, but if it was any assistance to
hon. members, he would repeat what they
were. The hon. member would probably
agree with him that they were connected
with the iron and steel industry. As he
stated yesterday, the Minister representing
the Crown—

¢ is hereby authorised and empowered to
establish, undertake, maintain, and carry
on the business of searching for, mining,
getting, winning, reducing, and smelting
iron and iron ores, and any metal,
mineral, earth, ore, or product used or
for use in such business, and the manu-
facture and production of iron and steel
with all or any associated trades, pro-
cesses, industries, or enterprises, and the
manufacture, preparation, and produec-
tion of chattels, articles, and things com-
posed wholly or in part of iron or steel,
and the sale, supply, or other disposal
of the ores, metals, and manufactured
products of such business so carried on
by him.”

Those were the other industries that were
specified particularly in the measure; they
were connected with the iron and steel in-
dustries, and this was the usual form of
words in the title of such a measure as this.
¢ Other purposes” was also a common form
of intituling a measure, and they referred
to the incidental powers that were necessary
for the carrying out of the main purpose.
There was also power given to the Governor
in Council to extend the operation of the
measure to other industries they thought
deisrable, as, for instance, building ships,
as he was reminded by his friend the Secre-
tary for Railways.

Question put and passed.
The House resumed. The TEMPORARY

CHAIRMAN reported that the Committee had
come to a resolution.

The resolution was agreed to.

F1rsT RFADING.

The PREMIER presented the Bill, which
was read a first time, and the second read-
ing was made an Order of the Day for Tues-
day next.
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MOTION OF CENSURE ON THE
HONOURABLE MEMBER FOR DALBY.

On the Order of the Day being read for
the resumption of the adjourned debate on
the Premier’s motion—

“1. That this House deprecates the
conduct of the hon. member for Dalby
(Mr. W. J. Vowles) in abusing the privi-
leges of Parliament by making, in the
course of a speech in this Assembly as
recorded in ‘Hansard’ of the 12th Sep-
tember, 1917, false allegations in regard
to the purchase by the Government of
Wando Vale Station, which allegations
a Royal Commission, after judicial in-
quiry, found to be untrue, and that the
hon. member was not justified in making.

2. That this House deems it to be a
duty to record its severe censure of such
conduct, inasmuch as it is subversive of
the public interests, and caloulated to
lower the standard which should be set
by the elected representatives of the
people, and generally to damage the
reputation of this honourable House,”

The SPEAKER said: I should like to
point out to the hon. member for Dalby that
15 is the practice, on a occasion like this,
for a member charged to withdraw from the
House. Standing Order No. 125 says—

““A member against whom a charge
has been made having been heard in his
place, shall withdraw while the charge
is under consideration.”

“ May” also lays it down, at page 310 (12th
edition), that—

‘It is a rule in both Houses that when
the conduct of a member is under con-
sideration, he is to withdraw during the
debate. The practice is to permit him to
learn the charge against him, and, after
being heard in his place, for him to
withdraw from the House. The precise
time at which he should withdraw is
determined by the nature of the charge.
When it is founded upon reports, peti-
tions, or other documents, or words
spoken and taken down, which suffici-
ently explain the charge, it is usual to
have them read, and for the member to
withdraw before any question is pro-
posed. But if the charge be contained
in the question itself, the member is
heard in his place, and withdraws after
the question has been proposed, as in
the cases of Mr. Secretary Canning in
1808, and of Lord Brudenell in 1836. If
the member should neglect or refuse to
withdraw at the proper time, the House
would order him to withdraw.”

My opinion is that it is for the House to
say whether the hon. member should be
allowed to remain during the debate, and
I now ask is it the pleasure of the House
that the hon. member be allowed to remain?
HoNOTRABLE MEeMBERS : Hear, hear!

The hon. member for Dalby here withdrew
from the Chamber.

Mr, CORSER (Burnett): By this motion
the Government wish to condemn the hon.
member for Dalby and to pass unanimously
a vote of censure on him. We know perfectly
well that the motion is a deliberate attempt
to victimise the hon. member for Dalby for
doing his duty to the country. The hon.

[18 Ocrorer.] Honourable Member for Dalby. 2061

member for Dalby wants nothing from the
Premicr or the Government, and since they
could do nothing else than allow him to
remain in the Chamber, I am very pleased
that the hon. member has left the House,
rather than accept anything from those who
are trying, in a dirty way, to victimise
him in the eyes of the electors of Queensland.
The hon. member has done nothing but his
duty, as a member of Parliament. The
Premicr knew from the mouth of one of his
own colleagues of the rumour which was
abroad, and yet he took no notice of the
matter. This inquiry was brought by the
Premier and the (overnment with the
deliberate intention of whitewashing them-
selves, and cleaning off the slate actions
that they have done during their term of
office. The hon., member for Dalby ask(;d
for an extension of the scope of the commis-
sion, so as to enable the judge to inquire into
other matters, but the Giovernment deliber-
ately refused to extend the scope .of the
commission, even to the extent of including
one more matter for inquiry. The Govern-
ment merely placed the small toe of their
feot in this inquiry, and left their boot on.
so that the hon. member for Dalby could not
get at it to wash away the dirt that was
covered up. During that inquiry the Govern-
ment stirred up so much muck, that they
think it necessary now to try to deceive the
people of Quecnsland ag to the real meaning
of the statement made by the member for
Dalby, and the impression that should be
gathered from the report made by the judge.
Fortunately, there is a bigger judge to deal
with this matter, and those hon, gentlemen
will have to answer to that judge. The
electors of the State will be the judges as
to whether the hon. member for Dalby did
his duty in the interest of the country, or
whether the Premier has narrowed down the
inquiry to sdit his own political purpose.
This scheme of the Premier’s to victimise
the hon. member for Dalby is part of a
plot which was made to catch somebody. In
selecting the hon, member for Dalby, the
Premier chose somebody that he desired to
frighten off the Opposition benches. (Govern-
ment laughter.) The Premier said the hon.
member for Dalby was aspiring to the
leadership of the Opposition, and that he
was doing something to try to secure that
leadership and get into power. When the
Premier made that statement, he thought
the hon. member for Dalby was likely to
succeed in his aspirations, and with that
impression in his mind he waited to catch
the hon, member and laid his trap for that
purpose. How did he lay the trap? The
Labour member for Flinders came to Bris-
bane, and in his evidence at quesftion 418,
we get this information—

“ When you came to Brisbane, did you
report the statement to anyone?—I told
Mr. Ryan, the Premier, about it some
little time later—some time in June; it
might have been the beginning of July—
I cannot remember the exact time T
mentioned it to him.”

From that it appears that at that time the
Premier of Queensland knew that that sbate-
ment had been made, and that it was made
by one who had secured it from

[4 pom.] a Mr. Gannan. From that time
out the Premier had at his dis-

posal the possibility of tapping the whole
of the evidence that this gentleman could

Mr. Corser.]
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put forward to prove the statement which

was carried to him by Mr. May. What
happened after that? Mr. May says—
“ Please read the mnote?—{Mr. May
reads as under}—
When Mr. Huxham and Mr. Gall

were in Cloncurry on 18th May, 1917,

a gentleman, a buyer of stations and

a station-owner, named Connor said

Wando Vale Station was offered for

sale for £47,000 a fortnight before the

Government purchased it for £82,000,

and that Mr. Theodore got £5,000.

The above statement was made before

a room full of people, including Mr.

Huxham, Mr. Gall, Inspector Johnson,

and myself.”

‘Then there is question 434—

“So he thought it was too incredible
to be worth '‘consideration?—VYes, de-
cidedly.”

The Premier said,
Then at question 445—

“Did you make any inquiries yourself
as to whether Mr. Theodore had had any-
thing to do with this purchase?—No, I

> made no inquiries. I left it, I thought,
in better hands than my own to make
inguiries.”
He left it in hands better than his own to
make inquiries—in the Premier’s hands.
From that time out the Premier had at his
disposal the possibility of securing the whole
of the evidence in this case which was known
to Mr. Vowles. I ask the Premier, did he
take advantage of the opportunity to prove
it or otherwise?
The Premikr: I knew it was a lying
slander all the time.

Mr. CORSER: That is not an answer to
my question. Did the Premier from that
time try to secure from these people the
truth or otherwise of the statement?

The PreMIER : Do you think that I inquire
into every lying scandal that is started
through the country?

Mr. CORSER : The Premier is not saying
that he did not find from Mr. Gannan and
those who made those statements whether
there was anything in them or not. I
will say that during that time the Premier
did make inquiries as to the possible truth
of that statement. On that hinges the
victimisation of the hon. member for Dalby
—on the silence of the Premier. He drew
from Mr. Vowles a case that he (Mr.
Ryan) as Premier has built up, designed
to catch somebody, and he wished to get the
man whom he thought was aspiring to be
the leader of the Opposition.  When M.
Ryan had this intimation he used it pretty
well, He got the hon. member for Dalby
in this House to say that he could prove
this statement. The Premier knows per-
fectly well that by his interjection the hon.
member for Dalby said, *“I can prove it,
and my witness is Mr. Gannan.”” That was
what the hon. member for Dalby expected
to be the proof—this Mr. Gannan was the
man who had made the statement. Did the
Premier leave it at that?

The PrREMIER: Whoever made the state-
ment was a wilful and malicious liar.

Mr. CORSER : That is not going to draw
wme off. That statement was shown you by
a Labour member. When the Premier got

[Mr. Corser.

“Yes, decidedly.”

[ASSEMBLY.] Honourable Member for Dalby.

the hon. member for Dalby to make that
staternent he knew that he had investigated
the whole of the evidence and that Mr.
Vowles, when he told him the strength of his
case and gave him the name of his principal
witness—Mr. Ryan knew perfectly well that
he had crawled right round the evidence
that this gentleman could give, and that he
had established a case that would make a
boom for his political party, whitewash them
of political sins, and make it bad for the
Opposition and the hon. member for Dalby.

Mr. Kirwan: Did not Mr. Vowles say
that he was out for political capital?

Mr. CORSER: Mr. Vowles was out for
the interests of the State, and further he was
out to show that he has been an honest man
to his electors in making this statement. We
will go a little further. On absolutely the
very same lines the next thing we come to is
the evidence of Mr. Vowles. On page 4, Mr.
Vowles, speaking of the witnesses he wanted,
said-——

“One, I understand, Mr. Gannan (who
is one of my chief witnesses in this
matter)—is very, very ill.”

Mr. Vowles desired that that witness’s
evidence should be secured in case the unfor-
tunate gentleman might pass away. A few
minutes after that the Premier’s barrister—
who was there for the vietimisation and the
proving of a case that the Premier had estab-
lished for himself—made this statement—

“For instance, Mr. Vowles mentioned
Mr. Gannan—"

Innocent Mr. Vowles, thinking that he was
dealing with an honourable gentleman—one
who would at least give a man a fair sport-
ing chance—a man who would not only stoop
to the appointing of a committee, but a
man who decidedly and deliberately at-
tempted to victimise him by selecting his
own time, his own judge, his own umpires,
and also the grounds on which this battle
should be fought, and also drew up the rules
as to when and how the game was to be
played, and decided as the game progressed
when he should blow the whistle to take
them off the field! Mr. Feez said—
“For instance, Mr. Vowles mentioned
Mr. Gannan. We know, in issuing the
commission—we have information that
Mr. Gannan at the present time is prac-
tically dying; he is in such a condition
that 1t is hopeless at the present time to
ask him anything about the thing; he
is in a state of delirium and is not ex-
pected to live—well, his death, unfor-
tunately, is expected at any time; he is
in a very parlous state indeed, and cer-
tainly is not in a condition to give
evidence at the present time.”

That was known to the Premier when he
secured from the hon. member for Dalby
the name of his witness, and decided that
he was to be victimised by this inquiry.

The PreEMiEr: That is untrue, and
know it.

Mr. CORSER: That is true, and before a
tittle of evidence was gathered on page 4
of this report—before the inquiry started—
the chief counsel of the Government—of the
Premier—made this statement in the court,
showing that the hon. member for Dalby’s
principal witness was not to be called to give
evidence at all. 1 will say this: that the
Chief Commissioner for Police in Queensland,

you
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Mr. Urquhart, received a telegram from
the police that Mr. Gannan was not in
a state to give evidence, and he was therefore
debarred from Mr, Vowes, and that was
known to Mr. Vow:es in the court. All that
information was collected by the Crown from
the hon. member for Dalby's chief witness.

The SECRETARY FOR RaAILwAYS: You could
have got some documentary evidence long
before that.

Mr. CORSER: The hon. gentleman will
have documentary cvidence before he has
finished. All :hat was done was, the hon.
member knew perfectly well, that the hon.
member for Dalky was right out in the
public intere:t, and the whole of it was to be
done at the zountry’s expense, to whitewash
this Labour Government so as to try and
put upon the slate at the next eleciion a
clean political sheet in their own interests.

The burniry of the evidence made it a very
hard thirg for Mr. Vowles to prove his case.
The bad memory of Mr, Barnes suited the
Government’s purpose, and the suppressing
of the evidence that the Crown had at their
disposal also went against the interests of
Mr. Vowles. Mr. Vowles, then cross-ques-
tioned by counsel, admitted that the wire
that he had sent, and which was in the
hands of Mr. Vowles, had previously been
sent by him and conveyed to the other <ide,
and was in court in the hands of Mr. Feez
at the dying hour of the inquiry.

Mr. MorGaN: And they call that honour-
able ?

Mr. CORSER : And this is an honourable
inquiry—the Premier was making the com-
mission that he appointed to extract the
whole truth. They were suppressing it and
were hiding in the papers information that
showed that Mr. Barnes had given his pro-
perty to another agent, and which Mr.
Barnes could not remember anything about.
Mr. Barnes, of course, could not substantiate
it, nor could Mr. Suter, because he also
had not got his papers. One hon. member
speaking last night, claimed that the papers
of Mr. Suter were not destroyed. I find that
Mr. Suter was asked—

“ You have no recollection of having
destroyed any particulars?—No, I do not
think 1 destroved them either., I think
the clerk would do that.”

Then Mr. Suter is again asked—

“You said you would mnot have

destroyed anything 7—I said not myself,

my clerk might have. They are not in
my office.”

If that is not the destruction of papers, what
is the use of the papers if they cannot be
produced.

The PremiEr: You know that our conten-
tion was that these papers never existed,
and he was your witness. That man

Mr. CORSER: Unfortunately for the Pre-

wier, that witness was the Premier’s witness. -

The PremiEr: He was not the Premier’s
witness.

Mr. CORSER: By confusing the name
Fowles with Vowles, the information came
to the hands of Mr. Vowles, and it was nof
until the inquiry that Mr, Suter himself said
that he thought that he was communicating
with Mr. Fowles, the Under Secretary for
the Treasurer.

The Premier: I say that Suter was Mr.
Vowles’s witness.

[18 OcTOBER.]
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Mr. CORSER: When the telegram cams
to Mr. Vowles that gentleman thought he
was securing informoation from a man who
had communicated with himself, whereas
he was getting evidence through the Crown
which the Crown.suppressed, and the tele-
gram received by the Crown had to be ex-
hibited in court, when by accident it was
drawn from Mr. Suter that he had made the
communication that the property was under
offer for practically £20,000 less than what
the Government purchased it for. At the
inquiry the Crown deliberately suppressed
this information that they had got. This
does not whitewash the Government. We
heard something of running up a score at a
country inn in the old days, and the amounts
being put up on the board, and we find that
the debts of the various people who had
patronised a particular inn might be chalked
against them on the board. It reminds me
of a little poem, nobt something composed by
the parliamentary poet, but something that
is in many ways better. It is a little piece
called ¢ The Irish Fire Brigade.” It runs—
“ How convenient it was, to have a fire
brigade like that, to clean the slate from
time to time.”” 'Then, after the brigade
visited the various portions of the town, it
continues—

“Then we tried the Pig and Whistle, though

it had not got alight;

But we went inside the taproom, to be
there in case it might.

They said there was no danger, but we
thought at any rate

As a precautionary measure we would play
upon the slate.

And when we'd washed the slate quite
clean and wiped out all the score,

We spent the night in boozin’, and 1n
running up some more.

And when the score we're running now has
got a little higher,

We'll bring the ould engine round again
and have another fire.”

My. Weir: That sounds like ““ The Wreck
of the ‘ Hesperus,””’

Mr. CORSER: It is a pity you were not
there with your brothers. Now, it will be
quite possible that on another occasion, when
the political score has gone up again on the
slate, the Government will attempt again to
whitewash it; to bring the old engine round,
to try and clean the slate—their political
consciences; and it will be seen by the
electors of Queensland what score they have
run up to the detriment of the people of this
country.

Mr. Forey: Why don’t you pubt the fire
out ?

Mr. CORSER : Well, we unfortunately are
not there to put the fire out; and if we were,
we would have had more evidence. Now,
no witness of the member for Dalby was
questioned by him, and the whole thing was
carried out to the honour of the gentleman
who gave the information to this House.
But can it be said from the other side that
the Government did not suppress informa-
tion? Last night the hon. member for Gre-
gory—Mr. Pollock—claimed that he had given
information to the Crown Solicitor—Mr.
Webb—and that on that information he was
not called as a witness. .

The SECRETARY FOR RAILWAYS: There was
no use.

Mr. Corser.]
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r. CORSER : No use to the Government?
The SECRETARY FOR RAILWAYS: No use to
the inquiry.

Mr. CORSER: And because it was pro-
bably of no use to the Government, it pro-
bably might have been of use to the other
side. Information has been suppressed. The
Premier knows perfectly well that when the
statement was made in the House he al-
lowed that statement to go in the pocket-
book throughout the State. That statement
was shown to the hon. member for Dalby in
that pocket-book. Was it right for the Pre-
mier to allow—probably to encourage—that
statement to go out so that some men—
probably the member for Dalby—could be
shown this evidence so that he might make
the statement in the House in good faith,
after the Premier had secured all the in-
formation as to the strength of Mr. Gannan
—that he could not give information?

The PreMiErR: I never heard of Gannan
until Vowles used his name in this House.

Mr. CORSER: I think the thing is too
apparent to anybody.

The PREMIER: I never heard of Gannan’s
name until Vowles mentioned it here. I
made no inquiries whatever.

Mr. CORSER: I will accept your state-
ment. On the 12th September the Minister
for Lands mentioned that these papers were
burnt. Knowing all these things, the Pre-
micr attempts to victimise a gentleman. He
builds up a big court, he makes a great
fuss, and then he comes along with this
nctlmxsatxon by throwing out these insinua-
tions in the Flouse, and bringing this amend-
ment that he cowardly moves on the mem-
ber for Dalby.

The SPEAKER: Order! Order!
Mr. CORSER: He could do nothing else.

The SPEAKER: Order! I must inform
the hon. member that ¢ cowardly” is not
parliamentary language.

Mr. CORSER: I thought I was moderate,
after hearing the Premier and Government
members speaking last night. Now, the
Premier deliberately, in charging the mem-
ber for Dalby, tries to get political kudos
out of the statements made in the Press here.
He misrepresented the position of a fire in-
surance meetmg the other day. He mis-
represented it by the letter that he read
from the Worker >—and he would not
acknowledge the ¢ Worker”—that a certain
national political organisation was receiving
certain funds, when that circular was ad-
dressed and was referring to a national union
that has not yet been formed in Queensland,
and which none of us know anything about.
(Government dissent.)

Mr. PayNE: Don’t be silly.

Mr. CORSER : It was the National Union,
and not the National Political Council. Thus
the Premier, with his loud voice, in this
House, tries to uplift—as he claims—the tone
of the debate of Parliament, after so many
years of scandalous victimisation by his party
of hon. members on this side of the House.
Does he forget the cement inquiry? Does he
forget the statements that have been made
with regard to Mr. Macartney—the Macart-
ney Expulsion Bill? Does he forget the
statements that the American Meat Company
were palm-oiling the Minister's of the then
front Treasury benches, that there were
moneys coming to the political organisations

[Mr. Corser.
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of the then Government because of the estab-
lishment of American meat trusts, that these
meat cormorants were providing moncy for
their political funds?

The SPEAKER: Order! The hon. gentle-
man is out of order; he is not discussing the
motion at all.

Mr, CORSER: I am sorry. I was rather
replying to the Premier.

The Previer: And the Premier can afford
to treat your speech with the contempt
which it deserves.

GOVERNMENT MEMBERS :

Mr. CORSER: I am not going to deny that
the Premier to-day cannot afford to do a
lot of things. I don’t know the strength
of his pocket at all; I am not questioning

Hear, hear!

that,

‘Mr. Kirwan: You know the strength of
his lash. (Government laughter and Hear,
hear 1)

Mr. CORSER: Well, after the next elec-
tion he will know the strength of the lash
of the country; and by the look of his face,
by his actions in the past and by those of
his Government, they are beginning to feel
1t. Now, by this inquiry—by the remarks of
the Press, by the innuendoes that are thrown
out—the people of Queensland are led to
believe that the hon. member for Dalby
made the statement that the Treasurer
socured £5,000 out of this deal; and that is
allowed to go forth; and last night the
Premier referred to it.

Mr, Morean: He insinuated it.

Mr. CORSER: He insinuated deliber-
ately that the hon. member for Dalby had
made the statement that the Treasurer had
secured £5,000 out of this deal.

Mr, Cooper: Will you deny that you ever
said it?

Mr. CORSER : I deny that I ever said it,
except in this House just now. The Premier
tried to cause that to be sent out and
circulated through ¢ Hansard,”” when he
knows—and every rightminded man knows—
that the member for Dalby did not make that
statement. But the Labour member for
Flinders—Mr. May—brought that statement
to him in this House, and showed it to_the
people in this Houso—as was admitted in
the evidence that was taken before the
inquiry; it was the Labour member for
Flinders that brought a statement here,
written in his pocket-book, given him by
one Connor, at Cloncurry.

Mr. Forey: And what does Connor say
now?

The PremiER : He brought it as an example
of the slanders you were using.

Mr, CORSER: It was he who brought
it, and not the member for Dalby. That is
the point. Never mind where they picked
it up from; never mind where they were
muckraking; it was a Labour member that
brought that here, and not the member for
Dalby, as was insinuated by the Premier’s
remarks and the ° twistocracy” of hon.
gentlemen opposite. No_one with a fair
mind will say that Mr. Vowles did not do
his duty to his country, and no one can say
that he is not the victim of a very vicious
attack by the Premier; and no one who is
fair will say that that inquiry was carried
to the limits it could have been in the
interests of anyone, and that the Governmeni
closed that 1nqu1ry—blew the whistle, took



Motion of Censure on the

the teams off the field—just when things
favoured them—just when the wind was
blowing their way.

The PrEMIER : If you like, I will reopen it.

Mr. CORSER: When the wind was blow-
ing their way, the Premier allowed Govern-
ment witnesses to go on; but when the wind
changed—when he had to kick against the
wind—he called his crowd off the field and
eried it “ off,” so that he could bring about
the victimisation of a gentleman who had
done his duty to the State—which the Premier
should have done when he received the
information that he had that day.

The PrEMIER : I will reopen it if you like;
and I will include your speech of this after-
noon.

Mr. CORSER : That won’t help cither side,
Last night he informed us that the people
of Queensland and the members of the Opposi-
tion in the country were not in accord with
the statements, or with the part Mr. Vowles
took in this; that they would not stand by
him; and yet he has repeatedly received
the congratulations of men who are unknown
to him, and letters have been received by
him from time to time.

The PrEMIER: Imaginary persons.

Mr, CORSER: This is an imaginary per-
son that the hon. gentleman must know some-
thmg about . sooner or later. Mackay
National Political TLeague, 15th October,
1917: T have the honour, by direction of
my executive, fo convey to you

The SPEAKER: Order! Is the
member reading a private letter?

Mr. CORSER: No, I am reading one from

a council—a resolution.

The SPEAKER: Order! The hon. mem-
ber led off by saying he was going to read a
letter.

Mr. CORSER: Well, it is—

““ A resolution passed by the National
Political Council, expressing their very
keen appreciation of the stand you have
taken up in connection with the present
inquiry, and trust your laudable efforts
will not remain unrewarded.”

(Government laughter.)

The PreMIER : What is the date?

Mr. CORSER: It is dated 15th October,
and was received this morning. Last night
the hon. gentleman would not have it that
the hon. member for Dalby had pleased his
own side and those gentlemen who are reason-
able in the community.

The PrEMIER: That letter only proves it
was done for political purposes.

Mr. CORSER: That letter shows distinetly
that the reasonable people in the community
recognise that, at any rate, the member for
Dalby has done his duty to the State.

A GoverNMENT MEMBER: Who are they ?

Mr. CORSER: I dor’t know who they
are; I am reading it as I got it from them.
If I read a letter or two I would be called
to order, so that I am not going to infringe
on the Standing Orders to any degree.

The SPEAKER: Order! The hon. mem-
ber can read a letter if he lays it on the
table of the House afterwards and allows
it to be inspected by other hon. members.

191761
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Mr. CORSER: I am not ashamed of it.
It is very awkward for the Government when
we can produce these documents that are
asked for. (Government laughter.)

Mr. KirwaN: They show who your friends
are,

Mr. WEIR: Was it not they who abused
the Governor last night?

Mr. Kirwan: Disloyalists.

Mr. CORSER: When we find that this
great purchase of Wando Vale was brought
about by a subordinate officer who inspeeted
it, when we had the services of onec Mr.
MecGugan, who was selected out of 250
applicants, we must say that the State Go-
vernment has not done its duty. This huge
purchase, amounting to so much to the State.
in which so much capital was invested, was
inspected by a subordinate officer when we
had the services of Mr. McGugan; and yet
we find that four or five pens of cattle yes-
terday were put in the Enoggera saleyards,
and Mr. McGugan was therc to see that they
were properly sold. Is not that a glorious

position? There were 149 cattle

[4.30 p.m.] sold in the Enoggera yards, and

Mr. MecGugan sitting there to
sce that they are sold in the interests of the
State, yet a subordinate officer is allowed to
inspect a property worth £85,000.

The PrEMiER: ‘He was there in the inter-
ests of the consumer.

Mr. CORSER: He wanted to see that the
cattle rcalised a good price, so that the meat
would not be sold at too high a price. There
were 149 bullocks sold at £21 5s. 9d. apiece.

The SPEAKER: Order!  The hon. mem-
ber is getting away from the motion alto-
gether.

Mr. CORSER: I have been drawn aside
by the interjections of hon, members oppo-
site. In conclusion, I would like to put into
“Hansard” a few lines from the ‘ Daily
Mail” of to-day’s date—

¢ The published evidence at the Wando
Vale inquiry has been of real bene-
ﬁt_7,

The PremiEr: The person who wrote that
article ought to be ashamed of himself.

Mr. MorgaN: The ¢ Daily Mail 7’ is doing
its duty.

Mr. CORSER: It goes on to say—

*1t has enabled the people generally to
understand how these Government pur-
chases are made and on what sort of
recommendation they are based. This is
the kind of information that Ministers
have been religiously keeping to them-
selves. Had Mr. Vowles not ventilated
the matter—had there been no public in-
quiry—it would never have been known,
for example, that on the report of one
isolated individual, not in the public
service and not responsible to anybody,
the huge sum of £82,000 could be casually
expended.”
They might have added that Mr. McGugan
was brought to Enoggera to see the cattle
sold and to see that the price paid was not
too low.

The SPEAKER: Order! The hon. mem-
ber has exhausted the time allowed him
under the Standing Orders.

Mr. PAYNE (Mitchell): The hon. gentle-
man who has just resumed his seat, the hon.

Mr. Payne.]
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member for Burnett, has become more notori-
ous than the hon. member for Dalby. The
hon. member for Burnett has no regard for
anything he says. Ie has not the slightest
regard for facts. He has no regard for the
evidence taken on oath before the Royal
Commission when he comes into this House
and makes a deliberate misstatement. Why,
he sets out to tell this House that the Premier
has moved this motion to victimise Mr.
Vowles, the hon. member for Dalby. Unless
‘the Premier was a worm he could do nothing
else but move this motion after the slandercus
statements that have been made here for some
months past.

Mr. MoRrGaN : It shows that he is a worm.

The SPEAKER: I ask the hon. member
tor Murilla to withdraw that expression.

Mr. Moreax: I withdraw it.

Mr. Groiies (to Mr. Morgan): Go on, you
mongrel.

The SPEAKER: Order! I ask the hon.
member for Kacham to withdraw that ex-
pression, .

Mr. GILLIES: In deference to your ruling
I withdraw it.

Mr, MACARTNEY : I rise to a point of
order. Is the hon. member for Mitchell in
order in saying that the hon. member for
Burnett made a deliberate misstatement?

Mr., CGrnies: So he did, end everyone
knows it.

The SPEAKER: So far as parliamentary
practice is concerned, the hon. member for
Mitchell is not out of order. While the state-
ment might be distinctly parliamentary, still,
when statements -like that are made, they
are not likely to help to preserve order in
debate. I think myseclf that hon. members
on both sides of the House should conduct
the debate in a better manner than they have
adopted in the last day or two. I hope hon.
members will be able to deal with any ques-
tion that comes before the House without
any heat at all. Ton. members have all got
the evidence before them, and they can quote
any portion of that evidence, without calling
anybody names. 1t I8 10T the desire OI the
Speaker to interfere with an hon. gentleman
when he is trying to put his case before the
House, but in this case members on both sides
have used expressions which, although they
might be parliamentary, arc not in the
interests of quietness and order in debate.

HToNOTURABLE MEMBERS : Hear, hear!

Mr. PAYNE: So far as the language used
by hon. members opposite is concerned, I
have never hesrd anything like it since I
have been in the House. I say that the
hon. member for Toowong has made de-
Jiberate misstatements in this House.
we had the hon. member for Burnett rise in
his place using the same arguments as the
hon. member for Dalby, and sheltering him-
solf bshind a dying man. That is the most
cowurdly thing that I have ever scen 1n my
life. The whole of the argument of hon,
raembers opposite was that they only wanted
to get Mr. Gannan’s evidence. We know all
about him. Why did not the hon. member
for Dalby get a statement from Mr. Gannan
sixteon mouths ago, before he made the state-
mwent in this House? He should have got
that statement from Mr. Gannan before he
made the charges in this House. I on. mem-
Ders opposite talk about looking after the
interests of the country. If they did, why

[Mr. Payne.
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did they not get a statement from Mr. Gan-
nan? The Premier could do nothing else
but move this resolution after what has oc-
curred. I read in this morning’s * Courier ”
a telegram stating that a member of the New
South Wales Parliament was expelled on the
motion of the Government for saying very
much less than Mr. Vowles did in this House.
I am not in the habit of using unparlia-
mentary language, but- I claim that Mr.
Vowles condemned himself by the words
which came from his own lips. If anyone
reads the evidence which he gave on oath
in the witness-box he will see that ho made
those remarks about Wando Vale from a
political point of view, and in order to gain
political kudos. If the hon. member for
Dalby has any manhood about him he should
make an apology in a manly way and let the
matter drop. He tells us in the witness-box
that he made the remarks from a political
point of view, and he comes along to this
House and says that he is not =atished with
the result of the commission. He says he
does not want to cast any reflection on the
judge, but he is not satisfied with the result
of the commission. He is sheltering himsolf
behind Mr. Gannan, who is a dying man,
whereas months and months ago he could
have got the facts from Mr. Gannan, and
there would have been no necessity to bring
up his name in this House. The hon. mem-
ber for Toowong and the hon. member for
Dalby have both had a legal training, and
one would naturally expect them to be able
to sift evidence better than a lay mind.
Poth of these gentlemen, however. have de-
liberstely misreprezented the evidence that
was taken. The hon. member for Toowong
rose in his place in an excited wav last night
and, striking his hand. he said that Mr.
Cox, in his sworn evidence, never contra-
dicted the statement that Wando Vale was
in Mr. Gannan’s books in 1916. That is a
most deliberate misstatement. The hon. mem-
ber for Dalby said the same thing. Let us
analyse the evidence in reference to that
particular point and see what was said. On
page 107 it will be found that Mr. Cox was
asked the following question by Mr. Feez:—

“2756. And I ask you, is there any
possible shadow of foundation, in your
mind, for the belief in Gannan’s mind
that he had it in his hands in 1916 for
£45,0002—The only thing, as I said be-
fore, is that he remembered seeing the
particulars in a book, but he would not
think what date they were.”

We have had evidence to prove that Gannan
had this property in 1910 and 1912 at a cer-

tain price. Then Mr. Feez asked another
quesbion—
“ Well, that is a very kindly way

of putting it for Mr. Gannan; but per-
haps Gannan never said it at all. That
is the only explanation, if he said it?7—
If he said it, it would be just on the old
particulars. I am quite satisfied he would
not have any further particulars, unless
Mr. Barnes gave them to him.”

We will see now what Mr. Barnes said, on
page 28. It will give you an idea how these
legal minds will tryv to twist a thing. Mr.
Barnes was asked the following questions:—

“Did you know Mr. Gannan at all?—
Yes: I knew him personally.

“ Is there the slightest shadow of truth
in the statement that it was in Mr.
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Gannan’s hands in August, 1916, for
£45,000 27— am positive there is no truth
in it,

“ And that Mr. Gannan had instruc-
tions not to refuse offers?—A ridiculous
suggestion.”

That is what Mr. Barnes said. Mr. Cox
was a partner with Mr. Gannan for twelve
vears, and he had the highest opinion of him,
but he said that at times drink got the
best of Mr. Gannan, and then he did not
know what he was doing. I am sorry to say
that that has happened to a lot of good
men. Mr. Cox knew }r. Gannan thoroughly,
and he distinctly states in his evidence that
Gannan had no proof that he had this par-
ticular property in his hands for sale since
1912, Yet we have two legal men in this
House pointing out that Cox said he was
not certain whether the preperty was in Mr.
Gannan’s books in 1916. I have heard a
good deal of discussion of this question,
and I have heard a good deal of unneces-
sary talk. The Premier could not do any-
thing else than what he has done. After
the slanderous statements that have been
made about this Government, I have come
to the conclusion that the most honourable
man on the Government side of the House
is liable to bhave a slanderous statement
made about him by a member of the Oppo-
sition, and wunless he has a good deal of
money he will not be able to see the thing
through, and it will place members on this
side in an awkward position. That is a state
of affairs that should not exist in any coun-
try, particularly it should not exist in a
deliberative assembly of this kind. The hon.
member for Dalby should do the manly
thing. yet he comes along here and shelters
himself behind a dying man. Why did he
not get the evidence from Mr. Gannan him-
self months ago before he made those ridicu-
lous statements? Suppose Mr. Pym did tell
him that Mr. Gannan made the statement.
Would it not have been a fair thing for him
to have got into communication with Xfr.
Gannan before he made the statement here?
If Mr. Vowles did not make the statement
directly that Mr. Theodore got £5,000 out
of this transaction, he said indirectly that
someone got a lot more than £5,000 out of it.
The hon. member suggested that the Govern-
ment gave £82,000 for Wando Vale when it
could have been bought for £45,000. What
would the average man or woman reading
a statement of that kind think? Why, that
the Government are a pack of thieves. If
that is the way members of the Opposition
are prepared to get political kudos—by
deliberately accusing the men sitting on the
Treasury benches of robbing the taxpayers
of the country of the sum of £30,000 odd—
for, boiled down, that is exactly what it
means—no man’s character will be safe in
this House. We hear members opposite say-
ing, “1I never said that anyone got £5,000
out of it; I never said this, and I never
said that.”” If these kind of statements are
to be allowed to go broadcast throughout
the country, I would not care about sitting
in the House. I certainly would not care
about associating mvself with any party who
allowed that kind of statement to be circu-
lated without challenging it. The hon. mem-
ber for Dalby has condemned himself. He
has taken up a very bad stand by defying
everyone in the House, and by saying that
he does not regret one word of what he
zaid; and he makes the same charges
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indirectly against the Government. The hon,
member still charges the Government with
having done something wrong. A man of
the kind should get no consideration from
hon. members. He has not the slightest
conception of fair play or manly action, and
he includes the whole of the Government
supporters in his condemnation, because we
know very well that if you charge a Ministry
with corruption the supporters of that
Ministry are placed in a very awkward
position. Both the hon. member for Dalby
and the hon. member for Toowong, gentle-
men who have legal training, deliberately
set out to misrepresent the evidence. It is
not necessary for me to say that they do not
understand the. evidence which was given
before the commission.

My, MacartNEY: It is not necessary for
rvou to misrcpresent what they say.

Mr. PAYNE: I say that the hon. member
for Toowong got c¢xcited the other mnight,
and said that Mr. Cox never said that
Wando Vale was not in the hands of Mr.
Gannan in 1916. I was surprised at that
statement, because Mr. Cox distinctly stated
in his evidence that Wando Vale was not
in 2ir. Gannan’s hands at that time. Mr,
Cox did not say an unkind word against
2Ir. Gannan, any more than to honestly
admit that liquor had got the best of him
and that he was not responsible for his
actions at times.

My, MacarTyey: Why don’t you read the
question.

Mr. PAYNE: If the hon. member wants
me to read the question and expose his
ignorance, I will read the question; but I
cannot for the life of me think that it was
throush ignorance that the hon. member
made that statement. Both the hon. member
for Dalby and the hon. member for Toowong
deliberately set themselves out to misrepre-

sent Mr. Cox’s statements.
Mr, Mscarrxey: You misunderstand de-
liberately.

Mr. PAVNE: Mr. Cox gave evidence ab
some length, but there is not a statement
in his evidence which justifies what the hon.
gentleman says.

Hir. MacartNey: Read question 2740.

Mr. PAYNE: I have read questions 2756
and 2757, and questions 497, 498, and 499.
r. Cox, in his eveidence, spoke in a way
that could not be misunderstood, and I was
surprised to hear such an interpretation given
to his evidence. The hon. member for Dalby,
instead of withdrawing the statement he
made, comes along here and reiterates the
statement that there is something wrong. I
#ay that kind of man is not a fit man to be
a member of this House, and if a motion
for his expulsion was moved, I would readily
vote for it.

Mr. FORSYTH (Murrumba): The hon.
member who has just resumed his seat was
not preparad to read question 2740, where
this evidence was distinetly given by Mr.
Cox—

““Ts he the sort of man to say, for
instance, he had a place in his hands
for sale at £45,000 when he had not it?
—No, he would not; but still, he may
have been misled about the date. Ie
would remember having a property in
his hands, but not think of what time.
Mind you, this property has never been
taken off our books; it has been on the

Mr. Forsyth.)
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books the whole of the time. Perhaps
he was not thinking of the date when
he said he had it for sale at £45,000.”

From that evidence it would appear that
Wando Vale was in the hands of Mr. Gan-
nan for sale at £45,000. The report also
states that Mr. Pym gave that information
to Mr. Vowles, and when under cross-exam-
ination before the commission Mr. Pym con-
firmed his statement, and said that M.
Gannan told him that he had Wando Vale
in his hands for sale at £45,000.

J[bl\/%r. PayNE: Mr. Barnes distinetly denied

at.

Mr. FORSYTH: Then, it
question of one man’s
another man’s evidence.

The Premizr: The judge found what is
the fact.

My, FORSYTII: He further said that if
Mr. Gannan stated that such was, the case,
he would say it was true. Mr. Cox said
he did not think Mr. Gannan had it in his
hands for sale.

The Premier: He did not say ‘“he did
not think 7 ; he said Mr. Gannan had not got
it in his hands fov sale.

My. FORSYTH: When a reference was
made to the price being low, he said he was
not quite sure what it was worth. I do not
know whether the Premier wants to victim-
ise Mr. Vowles, but there is onc thing that
is absolutely certain, and that 1is, that
whether the statement made by the hon.
member for Dalby is true or not, it will not
have the slightest effect on the people
throughout the length and breadth of Queens-
land. I do not think it will have any effect
on Mr. Vowles’s constituents; in fact, I
think it will probably strengthen his hands.

The PremieR: You know perfectly well
that he has not been victimised.

Mr. FORSYTH: Coming to Mr. Suter’s
evidence, we find that he had the property
for sale at £65,000.

The Premier: What is the date?
depends upon the date.

Mr. FORSYTH : Mr. Suter said emphati-
cally that he had it for sale at £65,000.
The Premizr: When?

Mr. FORSYTH : I think it was in 1816.
Here is what the judge says on this point—
“ Some question has arisen as to
whether Mr. Barnes placed the property
in Mr. Suter’s hands in February or
March, 1916. Mr. Barnes has no recol-
lection of having done so, but Mr. Suter
thinks he did, although he had no per-
sonal recollection and no written record
of the matter. His belief is founded on
a statement made to his clerk by Mr,
Peel to the effect that he (Mr. Peel)
remembered Mr. Suter’s firm offering
him Wando Vale in May, 1916, at
£65,000—which meant that Mr. Suter
could get him a firm offer at that price,
I am of opinion that Mr. Barnes did
inform Mr. Suter of his willingness to
sell at the price stated.”

The Prrmigr: When was that?

Mr. FORSYTH : He does not say when.
The PrREMIER: That is the important point.
Mr. FORSYTH: The hon. gentleman is a

barrister, and can twist statements to suit
his purpose. The statement of the judge is

[Mr. Forsyth.

it is simply a
evidence against

It all
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that Mr. Suter had a firm offer for Wando
Vale in 1916—not 1912—at £65,000, and that
he was of opinion that Mr. Barnes did in-
form Mr. Suter of his willingness to sell at
the price stated.

The Previer: You are trying to prove
two things—that it is true that it was offered
for £45,000, and also that it is true that it
was offered for £65.000.

Mr. FORSYTIH : Not at all.
ing about what Mr. Suter said.

The PreMier: I heard Mr. Suter in the
box.

Mr FORSYTH: The judge says that Mr.
Peel evidently had this offer made to him.
and that was in May, 1916, not 1912.

The Preairr: I am not suggesting it was
1912.

Mr. FORSYTH : The judge says he be-
lioves that Mr. Barnes did give the offer

to Mr. Suter at £65,000, which

[5 p.m.] meant that Mr. Suter could get

a firm offer at that price. His
Honour says—

“T am of opinion that Mr. Barnes did
inform Mr. Suter of his willingness to
zell at the price stated.”

Mr. Payse: Mr. Darnes said he could not
entertain the idea.

Mr. FORSYTH: Mr. Barnes said he
would not deny it, if Mr. Suter said he had
it under offer. The judge sums up the
matter, and says he believes Mr. Barnes had
placed the property under offer to Mr. Suter.

The Preaier: What month?

Mr. FORSYTIL: In May. 1916; that Mr.
Barnes gave Mr. Suter’s firm the offer of
Wando Vale in May, 1916, at £65,000, which
moeant that Mr. Sufer could get a firm offer
at that price.

The Premier: Who said that?

Mr. FORSYTH: Judge O’Sullivan. He
said—

“1 am of opinion that Mr. Barnes did
inform Mr. Suter of his willingness to
sell at the price stated (that is to con-
sider a ‘ firm’ offer).”

Mr. Kirwax: Finish it.

Mr. FORSYTIL: It is quite evident,
although Suter could produce no written
evidence, that the judge, after listening to
the whole of the evidence, was under that
impression. I, therefore, say that as far as
Suter is concerned it was placed under offer
to him in 1916.

My, H. L. Harriey: Read the next two
sentences of the judgment.

Mr. FORSYTH: There has been a great
deal of fuss made about this matter.

I am speak-

The Premier: Did you see what they did
in New South Wales with a member who did
his kind of thing? They expelled him last
night.

Mr. FORSYTH : When the hon. gentleman
was speaking the other night he made allega-
tions against members on this side. He said
that, if the Liberal party went back to power.
the public servants would be retrenched and
the poll tax would be imposed. What right
had the Chief Secretary to talk like that?

The PreMizr: Because it is true.

Mr. FORSVTII: Such wild statements a«
that are not likely to lcad to the amicable
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feeling which should obtain in this House.
That 1s the kind of :tatement which the hon.
member is always making.

The Premirzr: There is a tremendous lot
ot kindly teeling showing to the Premier!
You need only read the papers to see it.

Mr. FORSYTH : I have no unkindly feel-
ing towards the Premier. I do not believe

in being personal to any member; it is a’

most detestable thing to do.
to do
things.

The Previzr : We ave here, too, to prevent
slanders being made in this House against
anyone.

Mr. FORSYTH : That is quite right. The
hon. gentleman often makes statements that
wre not true.

The Preuirr: That is not so.

Mr. FORSYTIL: Have I slanderced yout

The Premier: I did not say that you had
made slanders.

Mr. PORSYTH: Why say the whole of
hon. members opposite, then?

The Premier: I did not say the whole; I
said some members of Parliament.

We have enough
here without descending to those

Mr. FORSYTH: You spoke about the
whote. I do not believe in slandering any-
body. If the hon. gentleman will do the

right thing in connection with this particular
vote of censure he will withdraw it. He
should be quite satisfied that there has been
nothing proved with regard to the statements
made.

The Premizr: In New South Wales last
night they expelled a member for the same
-gort of thing.

Mr. MoreaN: That is not true.
for the same thing.

Mr. FORSYTH : They may have or may
not have. That is not the point.

_ The Premizg: If I am making any mistake,
it is by being too lenient.

Mr, FORSYTH : This sort of thing is not
likely to lead to that good temper which
the Premier should help to bring about.

The PreMIER: I am not going to preserve
zood temper at the expense of having slanders
made in this House continually.

Mr. FORSYTH : I do not think that the
hon. member for Dalby had the slightest
intention of bringing this matter up at first
I do not believe there was anything in the
statement about the £5,000 being paid to a
Minister, I am sure no one ever believed
it, still Mr. Connorv made the statement.

Mr. PayNe: Mr. Connor said he did not
make the statement.

Mr, FORSYTH : As there appeared to be
something suspicious about it, it was better
to have a commission. It has been proved,
as far as the evidence goes, that there has
been no corruption on the part of the
Government.

The PremIER: And still members of your
side are trying to say there is corruption.

Mr. FORSYTH : If there really was any-
thing in the matter, and he could bring
evidence to prove these things, the hon.
member for Dalby would not have been
justified in not opening his mouth.

The Premier: He admitted himself that
he was trying to make political capital.

It is not
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Mr. FORSYTH : Is it not a fact, as proved
in the evidence, that the hon. member for
Flinders told the Premier that Mr. Gannan
stated that Wando Vale could be got for
£47,000.

The PreMIER: Gannan’s name was not
mentioned till Mr, Vowles mentioned it.

Mr., FORSYTH : Did Mr. Connor tell the
hon. member for Flinders where he got the
information? Of course he did.

The Premier: He did not.

Mr. FORSYTH: It was there in black
and white, he said. That is in Mr. Connor’s
own evidence.

The PremMizR: It is not in Mr. May’s
evidence. I know what Mr., May told me;
the welter of slander that was being carried
oa by your supporters in North Queensland.

Mr. FORSYTH : I understand from the
evidence that Mr, Conror had told Mr. May
at Cloncurry that Mr. Gannan had offered
this property at £47,00).

The PREMIER: No.

Mr. FORSYTH: Then, I will withdraw
that statement. In any case, whether he said
it to Mr. May or not, he said it in evidence.
The point I want to get at is this, that while
Mr. Connor may not have told the hon.
member for Flinders that Mr. Gannan was
the man who gave him the offer, yet, on the
other hand, Mr. Connor had told Mr. May
that the place was under offer at £47,000.

The PrReMIER : Yes, and in telling Mr. May
that he told him a lie. That is the point.

Mr. FORSYTH : That is not the point.
The point is that he did tell Mr. May that
this place was under offer for £47,000. This
is Mr. May’s evidence on the point—

“ He said Wando Vale had been in
the market for £47,000, a fortnight before
the Government had bought it for
£82,0007—Yes, that is what he said.”

That was the statement, and it was made in
the month of May. Why did the hon.
gentleman not find it out?

The PremiEr: Do you think I gave any
credit to such a lie as that, for one moment.

Mr. FORSYTH: That is not the point.
The hon, member made no effort to ascertain
the facts in conmection with this matter.
Mr. May’s evidence further shows—

¢ Cross-examined by Mr. Feez: Did -
Mr. Connor give any grounds for this
statement ?—It was known in the North
that the station was being bought, and
he made this statement before a whole
roomful of people.”
There is not much in that.

Mr. Pourock: It proves you were not
telling the truth when you said that Mr.
Connor got it from Mr. Gannan.

Mr. Coorer: The hon. member for Mur-
rumba has already withdrawn that state-
ment.

Mr. FORSYTH: I knew, as far as my
memory served me, that Mr. May had the
information from Mr. Gannan that the place
was put under offer for £47,000, and that
is the reason why I mentioned it in that
particular way.

The Premiee: That is why you made a
mistake.

Mr. FORSYTH: Yes; and I will with-
draw it, as I am in the wrong. But that

Mr. Forsyth.]
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does not alter the fact that the hon. gentle-
man knew about it when Mr. May came
down with this statement with regard to
Myr. Theodore—which I am sure ne one
believes for one minute is correct.

The PreEMIER: Do you think I believed it
for a moment?

Mr. FORSYTH : No, I do not.

. The Premier: I scouted the idea; treated
it with contempt.

Mr. FORSYTH : I den’t think that you
believed it for one minute. But the hon.
gentleman later on knew that these rumours
were going about about the station being
offered at a less price—it does not matter

whether it was to Mr Suter or to Mr.
Gannan. If he had wanted to get more
information, in case this question should

crop up, why didn’t fe get in touch with
Mr. Gannan?

The PreMIER: I never heard of Gannan’s
name until Vowles mentioned it here; I
never heard of it mn connection with the
matter. '

Mr. FORSYTH: You could have heard
from Connor, who had got the information
from Gannan.

. The Premier: I knew perfectly well that
if Connor said tha$, it was a deliberate lie.

Mr. FORSYTH : That may be so.

The Premier: And Connor admits that.
Do you think I have nothing else to do than
to chase up the lies anybody tells about the
Government?

Mr, FORSYTH : This is a question which
has been so much talked about—whether
there was any truth in it or not.

The PremiEr: Part of the plan of cam-
paign against this Government is a cam-
paign of slander and lies.

GOVERNMENT MEMBERS : Hear, hear!

Mr. FORSYTH: The hon. gentleman’s
statement is not correct, I have quoted
from his own speech on the very same
question and shown how he slanders this side
of the House. He knows it is not true, and
he has no righi to say it.

The SPEAKER : Order !

Mr. FORSYTH : By the way he speaks,
one would think that there was not an
honourable man on this side of the House.

The PremmER: I would be very sorry to
say that.

Mr. FORSYTH : Now, when we come to
the question of Mr. Barnes's statement with
regard to the £65,000, we find that it is not
by any means clear. Even the Premier has
confessed that the statement made by Mr.
Barnes is not by any means clear, when
he was asked distinctly if he would say he
had not put the property in the hands of
Mr. Suter, and he said he would not say so.

The PrEmier: But he did say—you will
admit this—that, whether he did or not, he
would not have sold it for £65,000.

Mr. FORSYTH : That is not the question.
The PreuviEr: That is the question.

Mr. FORSYTH: No. I should imagine
that if one man goes to another man and
simply states, ‘I have a property for sale
for which I am prepared to take £65,000,”
he would be prepared to sell it at that figure.
What would you think of him if he after-
wards said, ‘“‘I am not prepared to take
that,”” when he got it under offer. When
Suter had it in the first place he offered it

[#r. Forsyth.
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to Mr., Peel, and Peel declined to take it.
If he had not done so, surely Mr. Barnes
would have carried out his promise which
he made when he put it in the hands of Mr.
Suter for sale. If there had been a period
of several months, or a year, between them,
it would be another matter.

The Premier: Do you suggest that the
Government paid too much for Wando Vale?

My. FORSYTH : I think mysclf they paid
quite enough. Of course, one thing which
helps the Government a good deal is that
there is a great deal more stock on the
place than it was anticipated there would
be. I hope they will make money on it

The PremiEr: You know perfectly well
that we will make money on it; we will
make thousands, and tens of thousands, of
pounds out of ib.

Mr. FORSYTH: The hon. gentleman is
making too sure. If he will only go back
and read Mr. Barnes’s evidence—

The PrReMIER: You would like to have the
speculation.

Mr. FORSYTH: If he will read Mr.
Barnes's evidence he will see that he told
them a couple of years ago he lost 9,000
head through the drought. If a drought
were to come along now the hon gentleman,
instead of making money, would lose a great
deal. Mr. Barnes had the place under offer
a few years ago with 17,000 or 18,000 head
of cattle, and after the drought was over he
himself reckoned there were only 10,000 head.
Therefore he reckoned he had lost 50 per
cent. of his stock; and 50 per cent. of a
man’s stock, upon a basis of, say, £8 per
head, would mean a loss of £40,000, instead
of a gain.

The PREMIER :
Wando Vale for
retired now.

Mr. FORSYTH: I am sure we all hope
that the Government will make money out
of it.

The Premier: Don’t you think the Govern-
ment made a good deal?

Mr. FORSYTH : No, I would not say the
Government made a good deal. I believe
myself that the Government paid a fair price.
The price of cattle is going up; there is no
doubt about that. I will also say that
Barnes would take it back and give them
interest on their money.

Mr. Kirwax: You don’t deny that Barnes
was willing to pay us back £94,000?

Mr. FORSYTH: I don’t deny it at all
I think hon. gentlemen will agree that
Wando Vale is not what you would call a
first-class property.

The PrEMIER: It was a cheap property.

My, FORSYTH: I don’t remember any
sales having been made in Queensland upon
the basis of 10,000 head of cattle at £8 per
head. There may be some. I am only telling
vou that I don’t know of one single station
—-a big station like that—with a big number
of stock which has been sold upon the basis
of, we will say, £8 per head.

The PreEmiER: Well, I know of some that
were under consideration by the Government
at the time.

31y, FORSYTH : That is a diffcrent thing.

The Premier: They would not sell under
£10 a head.

If any man had bought
£82,000 he could have
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Mr. FORSYTH: That may be. I know
nothing w.hate.ver about Wando Vale, but I
do not think it would be considered a first-
class cattle station. However, I hope and
trust the Government may make plenty of
money out of it. I only want te mention this
—that I think it is a great mistake that big
transactions running into hundreds of thou-
sands of pounds should be taken by the
Government into their own hands without
ever taking Parliament, or this House, into
consideration at all.

The PrEMIER: The information was given
to the House on 17th July—the price.

Mr. FORSYTH : I weuld not restrict the
Government to a few thousands of pounds;
but big transactions running into hundreds
of thousands of pounds—like Wando Vale
and all the others—should be brought before
the #fouse and have a vote of the House
before they are dealt with,

The SPEAKER: Order! The hon. mem-
ber will have an opportunity of discussing
that on the Estimates. ’

Mr. FORSYTH : Well, I have finished, if
you will allow me to make this statement.
I have no desire to say any more; but I
want to call attention to the fact that during
the last two years unforeseen expenditure has
been £1,250,009. Does the Premicr think it
is a fair deal, whether it is in connection
with the purchase of Wando Vale, the buying
of cattle—

The SPEAKER: Order! 1 cannot allow
the hon. member to continue on that subject.
He will have an opportunity of discussing
it on the Tistimates,

Mr. FORSYTH: With regard to this
matter, I think it would be a very nice
thing if the hon. member would withdraw
it. He has the findings of the commission,
and he is completely exonerated.

The PREMIER: I pointed out, in moving
the motion, that if the hon, member would
withdraw it that would be an end of it.

My, FORSYTH: He is satisfied with the
verdict, and he knows exactly the whole
position from beginning to end. I say that
mstead of bringing this on he should have
been satisfied with that, and allowed the
matter to drop. By doing that he would
have been doing what I call an honourable
thing; but by doing this sort of thing—
whether he thinks so or not, there is not
the slightest doubt about it—the general
impression is that he is trying to victimise,
as far as he possibly can, the hon. member
for Dalby, just the same as the hon. gentle-
man did last year when he tried to victimise
the hon. member for Toowong.

The PreEmMIiER: No.

Mr. PETERSON (Yormanby): The hon.

member for Murrumba, in his justification -

of the member for Dalby, reminds me very
much of the father of a son. The son had
been found guilty of murder upon unmis-
talkable evidence; but despite the verdict of
the jury and judge, the father protested that
his son was innocent. So it is with the hon.
member, who is trying to castigate the House
in the conduct of its business as far as if
relates to parliamentary privilege, and at the
same time he is trying to whitewash the hon.
member for Dalby. Now, it was stated here,
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sir, that there has been no precedent estab-
lished whereby Parliament could act. We
have not to look back very far in order to
obtain a precedent. As has already been
pointed out this afternocon, we sze that the
New South Wales Parliament has, at any
rate, established a precedent, of which this
Parliament can very well take notice. What
occurrod there? Mr. Price, the member for
Gloucester (who happens to be a Liberal
rmember), made certain insinuations against
Mr. Ashworth (the Minister for Lands).
Just the same as Mr. Price had a vendetta
against Mr. Ashworth down there as Minister
for Lands, so we have had in this House a
vondetta by three hon. members who have
tried, time snd time again—by inference,
by insinuation, and by public statements—
te bring the Minister for Lands into the line
of corruption. Now, what happened in the
New South Wales Parliament? Mr., Price—
whose strictures against Mr. Ashworth were
not nearly so bad as the strictures which have
been levelled by Mr. Vowles and other
members——

My, MacaRTNEY: What were they?

My, PETERSON: Time will not allow me
to go into the details of Mr. Price’s case;
but it is here in the ¢ Telegraph,” showing
what Mr. Fuller did there.

Mr. Kirwax: The strong man o'f Aus-
tralia.

My, PETERSON: This gentleman, who
has charge of the Parliament of New South
Wales, deemed that Mr. Price was worthy
of expulsion. Now, we are not proposing
to expel the hon. member for Dalby.

Mr. MacarTnEY: Do it.

Mr. PETERSON: I do not believe that
this motion would ever have been tabled
had it not been for the audacious effrontery
of thc hon. member for Dalby the other
night, after the judge had given his decision,
in trying to get up here and whitewash him-
self. © If the hon. member had taken his
gruel in a manly spirit this motion would
never have been heard of. The hon. member
for Burnett has stated that the Government
were afraid to cxtend the functions of the
court. It was not the duty of the Govern-
ment to extend the functions of the court.
It was the duty of the Government to take
notice of the charges which the hon. member
for Dalby made on 12th September last.

Mr. SteveNs: They should have kept the
inguiry open.

Mr. PETERSON: The hon. member says
the Government should have kept the com-
mission open. Once a Royal Commission ie
established, that Royal Commission is in the
hands of the judge, and it is for the judge to
say when the commission should be closed.
No Premier has the right to go to a judge of
a Royal Commission and say when he should
blow the whistle—as the hon. member for
Burnett impudently suggested.

My, MacarTNey: Don’t find fault with
your own Premier. .

Mr., PRETERSON: I am not finding fault
with the Premier, nor will I find fault with
your supporter, Judge O’Sullivan—not the
slightest. Now, the hon. member says that
this commission was so close that they could
not discuss anything else. Now, it is not the

Mr. Peterson.)



2072 Motion of Censure on the

function of the Government to discuss any-
thing else. There was a specific charge made
here by Mr. Vowles, incriminating the Go-
vernment. This is what he said—I will read
it, even to the extent of wearying the House.
I am quoting from *“ Hansard” No. 17. In
the course of his speech, Mr. Vowles stated—

“In regard to the purchase of Wando

Vale in the northern Gulf country, be-
yond Hughenden, that is regarded as a
smellful transaction, to put the least
expression on it. It is notorious that it
was in the hands of an agent at Hughen-
den at a very much less sum than the
Government purchased it for. I believe
an hon. member said here this afternoon
that there was only a difference of
£5,000.”

Now, I want to draw the attention of the
House to this fact : Mr. Pym in his evidence,
stated that he had met the member for
Murilla and the member for Dalby some
twelve months ago, and he had given them
some statement of which he has now a hazy
recollection. I want the House to take this
info consideration. Mr. Morgan stated that
the difference between the price at which it
could have been got and that which the
Government paid, was £5,000. Mr. Morgan
said he gct that information from Mr.
Pym. Mr. Vowles goes into the witness-box
—although he was there at the same time
that Mr. Pym gave that evidence to them
verbally—and he states that Mr. Pym told
him the price the station could have been
procured at, was £45,000, making the differ-
ence £37,000. Why, when the hon. mem-
ers are organising a conspiracy to try
and damn this Government, they ought to be
a little more careful of their facts. Just
Imagine their meeting Mr. Pym, no doubt,
down there in the Albert Hotel, where Mr.
Pym said it was, and no doubt having a
glass of Whlslgy and discussing this matter.
You would think they would remember Mr,
Pym’s statement; and yet of both those hon.
members who stated they got their evidence
from Mr. Pym, one says there was a £5,000
dlﬁerence,. and the other says there was a
£357,000 difference. It is upon the evidence
of men like that that this Government stand
to be condemned. Hon. members say, “ Why
take notice of it once the commission has given
its verdict?”’ T say, with the Premier, that
this is only part and parcel of a scheme of
slander which has been inaugurated to try
and defeat the present Government. I am
one of those who say that parliamentary
privilege to my mind, as long as I have been
able to understand it, is merely a refuge for
scoundrels. The member, whether he sits
on this side or on the other side of the
House, who is not game to say outside what
he says in here, is not a man at all. That
1s my opinion about it, and the sooner that
members are willing to say outside what they
say in here, the better it will be for our
parliamentary procedure.
Mr. STEVENS:
Ferricks?

. Mr. PETERSON: No. I am not apologis-
ing for Ferricks or anyone else. TUnder
the privilege of Parliament, any member
can get up here and slander anyone he likes,
He can slander them morally or politically
and there is no redress against him in a
court of law. It is preposterous that a man
can go on insinuating anything in Par-
liament in order to try and incriminate the
G That is what the hon.

Are you apologising for

{zovernment.
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member for Dalby did, and he did it very
ignobly, as we have seen from the decision
of the judge presiding over the Royal Com-
mission. ‘

Mr. MACARTNEY: The master of innuendo
is over on that side.

r. PETERSON: The hon. merpber for
Toowong said that the master of innuendo
is on this side, but from my experience of
the hon. gentleman, he is pretty good af
innuendo himself. In fact, it is pretty hard
to catch what he means by his innuendoes.
Probably he has “ an axe to grind.” I am
going to continue with the case before the
Rosal Commission, and I will show how
those notable witnesses, Messrs. Vowles and
Morgan. differed. )

Mr. Kirwsax: You should say ““ notorious.”

Mr. PETERSON: They differed notor-
iously in the figures which they gave regard-
ing the conversation they had with Mr. Pym.
Mr. Vowles went on to say—

1 believe an hon. member said here
this afternoon that there was only a
difference of £5,000. I would like to
know what the Government paid. I
understand they paid £83,000. I am in
a position to say that it could have been
bought on the same day with all the
stock on it for £45,000, and less.”
I remember the night when the hon. member
made that speech. He roared out so loud
that he could be heard up in Queen street.
He wanted to infer that the Government,
in buying that station, were paying away the
public money to such a degree that it
demanded immedfate consideration. The
Premier interjected to the hon. member for
Dalby when he was speaking, “You are pre-
pared to say anything,”’ and the hon. mem-
ber for Dalby continued-— )
“1 am not only prepared to say it; I
am prepared to prove it.”’
The hon. gontleman said that he could prove
it: he got his opportunity to prove it, and
failed. Now he states that the commission was
circumscribed in the questions it had to deal
with, and he wanted other matters dealt
with. What had we to consider in regard
to Mount Hutton? The hon. gentleman
wanted to bring in something irrelevant to
the subject under discussion.  The commis-
sion sat for the purpose of determining
whether the Government, rightly or wrongly,
had done a wise thing in connection with
the purchase of Wando Vale. Therefore,
when hon, members opposite say that_the
scope of the commission was circumscribed,
they are saying something that is totally
jrrelevant to the subject under consideration.
What did His Honour Judge O’Sullivan say?
The judge, after carefuly summing up, sald.——
“T find that the information then in
Mr. Vowles’s possession was not suffi-
cient to justify him in making the alle-
gation in subparagraph (a), because (1)
of the casual nature of the conversation
and the length of time that bad elapsed;
(2) Mr. Gannan’s evidence was necessary
to prove the allegation, and he had not
been communicated with; and (3) Mr.
Pym’s statement that Mr. Gannan had
the property on his books for £45,000—
even if correct—would not prove that the
property could have been bought for
£45,000, as the agent’s authority would
only extend to obtaining and submitting
offers.”’

Mr. SteveEns: Offers for a less amount.
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Mr. PETERSON: No.
that at all. I am quoting exactly what the
iudge said. The hon. gentleman cannot
irap me. The judge also said—

“Mr. BE. Cox (Mr. Gannan's partner
up to March, 1916) gave evidence that
he searched amongst Mr. Gannan’s
papers, and found that the property was
put in Mr. Gannan’s hands in 1912, at
£45,000, by Messrs. Brodie and Company,
but could find no later record of the
property being in My, Gannan’s hands.”

It does not say

Yot the hon. member for Murrumba said
this afternoon that :t was in 1916. When
the hon. member was on his feet, we chal-
lenged him to show anything in the evidence
1o prove that it was placed in Mr. Gannan’s
hands in 1916, The judge, in his summing-
up, has said clearly that it was not so. The
sudge also said—

“1 find that in 1916 the property was
not in Mr. Gannan’s hands at £45,000,
and that he had not instructions to sell
it for that or any other sum.”

What is all this talk about? The judge,
after hearing all the evidence submitted to
him in connection with the purchase of
Wando Vale, found that the evidence of Mr.

Cox showed that Gannan did not have
Wando Vale on his hooks since 1912. Yet
hon. members opposite get up in their

piaces and try to whitewash the hon. member
for Dalby, and in doing that are casting a
serious reflection on His Honour Judge
O’Sullivan. I just "wish to hark back to
what the hon. member for Murilla said in
connection with this matter, because it has a
bearing in connection with the charges made
by Mr. Vowles. The hon. member for
Murilla. on page 1087 of ¢ Hansard,” said—

‘T wish to refer to the purchase of the
Wando Vale station. In connection with
that purchase we know that that very
station was listed by the auctioneers in
that district at £5,000 less than the
Government paid for it. I want the
Treasurer to reply to that and to tell us
why the Government paid £5,000 more
for that station than this firm of aue-
tioneers asked for it.”

‘What was the implication? The implication
was that the Treasurer had received £5,000
as graft. and the hon. member for Dalby
admits that in his evidence. That is the only
inference. that can be taken from the hon.
member for Murilla’s statement. As I have
already peinted out, there is a contradiction
between the two hon. members. I advise
them next time they hatch a plot with such
material at their dispesal to be more careful
of their facts. One says that there was
£5,000 mentioned and the other one men-
honed a sum showing a difference of £37,000.
I think the public will refuse to take any
notice of these hon. gentlemen in future.

Mr. BeBBINGTON: They are two different
statements and have no relation to each other.

Mr. PETERSON: The hon. member for
Drayton dees not know what he is talking

about. he only read the ecvidence he
would see that Mr. Vowles corrected Mr.
Morgan. They relied upon the evidence of

Mr. Gannan, and the hon. member for Dalby
said that the Premier was not game to take
any action in the matter until Gannan was
too ill to appear. That is a most unfair
statement. How could the Premier or the
Government take action until a specific charge
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had been made in thic House? We got a
specific charge from the hon. member for
Dalby. The hon. member for Dalby said
that he could produce the proof, and when a
man says he can prove a thing is not the
onus on him to produce that proof?

Mr. BEBBINGTON: Was not the statement
made to the Premier twelve months before?

Mr. PETERSON: No. The statement was
made to the Premier in August last, only a
couple of months ago. The hon. member for
Burnett laid great stress on the fact that
Mr. Barnes had burnt a lot of letters. I do
not know what object he had in burning a
lot of letters, because so far as that gentleman
is concerned he had sold his property, and
changed his rosidence to another property
he owned. I personally heard him give his
evidence, and I camec to the conclusion that
like everyone else who shifts from one house
to another, that he burnt a lot of old papers.
I know myself that when I shift from one
house to another there is always a lot of
burning of papers. So far as Mr. Barnes is
concerned, it is only natural that like any
other man, when he sold his station, he
would burn up his old papers because they
would be of no more value to him. Hon.
members opposite seem to have relied on the
evidence of CGannan. Who is Gannan? I
do not know him myself, but from the
evidence given by other witnesses it was
proved that Gannan was only a whisky
soaker., He was never sober. That was the
evidence that was given, that he was_ a
whisky soaker. Why, Pym_had to caution
Gannan to be careful about his statement.

Myr. BmsmingTON: You are abusing your
parliamentary privilege now by calling a man
a whisky soaker.

My, MacarTyRy: And a dying man, too.

My. BesrpingTON : Why don’t you make that
statement outside ?

Mr. PRTERSON: I am making it here.
I am giving you the cvidence that was sub-
mitted to the commission. The chief witness
which the hon. member for Dalby relied on
was Mr. Gannan,

The Premier: There is
Gannan ever said it.

Mr. PETERSON : No, there is no proof at
all,

Mr., StEVENS: The Premier knew that
Gannan could not be called.

Mr. PETERSON: Mr. Cox was called in
his place. Mr. Cox was a partner of Gannan’s,
and we will see exactly what Mr. Cox said
in his evidence. They could not get Gannan
to bolster up their charges, so we will see
what the partner had to say. When Mr.
Feez was examining the witness, he asked—

“Well, do vyou remember Wando
Vale being in the hands of Mr. Gannan?”
To that the witness replied ¢ Yes.” Then
Mr. Feez asked him—
“When was that?”
And he replied— .
¢ Well, the only particulars we have
were in 1910 and 1912.7
How does the hon. genileman square his
statement in regard to that? Then we have
question 2727—
¢ Qince 1912 can you say whether Mr.
Gannan had it?—No, I could not.
have been through all the books in the
old office.”
Would you not think with a huge transaction

Mr. Peterson |

no proof that
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like that involving a sum of £80,000, that an
up-to-date land agency liks this would have a
record in their books? Mr. Cox was per-
mitted to scarch through the books, but he
could not find any trace of this property
being in the hands of XMr. Gannan for £45,000

in 1916, There is not the slightest evidence
of that. Then we have this question—
“By the Comunissioner: You say

you searched through the papers in the
old office 7—Yes, in the old office. We
have all the old correspondence dating
right back from when I started with Mr.,
Gannan—that is, the outward correspon-
dence—and there is nothing to show
there were any letters about the property
itzelf; it is about stock.” .
There is no proof whatever in the whole of
the correspondence that Gannan had the pro-
perty in his bands in 1916. The whole thing
boiled down proves that the hon. membep
for Dalby and the hon. member for Murilla
are simply going on hearsay evidence, and
it was on this hearsay evidence that they
were going to rout the Government out of
office. Instcad of that, what have they done ?
They have brought down contempt upon
themselves. I think it is up to this Parlia-
ment to see that the privileges of Parlia-
ment are not abused. As I have already
stated, no member should make a statement
inside this House that he is not prepared to
make outside. Vet the hon, member for
Murilla, the hon. member for Dalby, and
the hon. member for Burnett have repeatedly
done it in this House. I hope that before
long there will be a Bill introduced to do
away with this so-called parliamentary privi-
lege. I do not intend to claim any privilege
for anything I say here. I think that every
member who says anything in this House
should be prepared to say it outside. Per-
sonally, I will not rely on any privilege
myself. (Hear, hear !} Boiled down, the whole
thing comes to this: That Mr. Vowles was
told by somebody, who was told my some-
body else, that somebody had this property
in their hands for sale at £45,000. Mz,
Feez asked Mr. Vowles, “ Do you under-
stand "the law of evidence with regard to
llgarsay evidence 77 “Yes,” said My,
Vowles. The hon. member came into this
House and made a statement that he could
not corroborate when given an opportunity
to do so. Mr. Vowles has repeated the stato.
ment that he has not imputed corruption
to the Government in any shape or form.
Mr. StEVENS: Neither did he.

Mr. PETERSON: What have all the
questions in connection with Mount Hutton
and Wando Vale been asked for? The hon.
members who put those questions know that
if you can get a rumour started and going
round the backblocks, it will do the Govermn.
ment a certain amount of harm, and that
is the motive which actuated hon. members
in putting those questions. The hon. mem-
ber for Dalby and the hon. member for
Murilla have taken up their present attitude
because they had an edge on the Minister
for Public Lands. Since the last election
there has been a vendetta of three members
on that side of the House against the Min.
ister for Public Lands, and everything they
could possibly do has been done to bring
that hon. gentleman into disrepute. How-
ever, the Government appointed a Royal
Commission, which consisted of a gentleman
who was formerly a member of the Opposition

[Mr. Peterson.
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party, and that gentleman, on the evidence
submitted to them, decided that the Govern-
ment had made a good bargain in the
purchase of Wando Vale. And I believe
that when the people are appealed to, they
will say that the charge: made by the hon.
member for Dalby and other members on
that side of the House are not warranted,
and that the Premier and his colleague have
a clean character as far as their public life
is concerned. I also believe that when thoss
members go back to their own electorates
their constituents will have something to say
about their base conduct in this House.

AMr. BEBBINGTON: I regret that this
House has not been given suflicient informa-
tion on many subjects—this one included.
If we had been given sufficient information,
the statements which have been made would
not, have been made. I know the Wando
Vale Station and all the stations adjoining
it, and I know that the sudden rise in value
of thosa stations was commented upon by
practically the whole of the people of the
State. One of the reasons for the rise in
values of cattle and station properties was
that it was known that the Government were
going to purchase such properties. The Min-
ister for Public Lands made the statement
that the Government were unlimited buyers.
If the Government state that they are un-
limited buyers of properties or produects, will
not the prices of those properties and pro-
ducts go up? We know quite well that
people will hold back for higher prices. It
15 only a few years since I was in that dis-
trict, and I know two stations which were
bought for £160 each, including the brands
of cattle and everything connected with them.
T cannot say what stock was on those sta-
tions, or what improvements have been made
on them since. I may state that one station
of 500 square milex within 20 miles of
Emerald, and having a frontage of 14 miles
to the railway, was offered to me at that
time for £500. Ancther station on the Daw-
son was offered to me. I went right across
from Rockhampton to the Western line, and
I can inform hon. members that at that time
you could travel hundreds of miles and never
see a single head of caftle on those stations
which were offered for sale at from £160
to £500. Palm Creek Station was bought
for £300. and the cattle were given iIn.
When people find that those stations have
advanced in value from a few hundred
pounds to £82,000, can you wonder that they
are excited and that they think the Govern-
ment paid too much for Wando Vale? The
Government have gone into the business and
have bought bullocks, and the people of
Brisbane have had to pay more for their
meat because the Government have bought
stations and sent their cattle into New South
Wales. So long as the price in the Sydney
markets is the highest, so long will the Go-
vernment sell their cattfle to New South
Wales buyers. The week before last—the
very first week that the price in the Bris-
bane niarket exceeded the price in the Syd-
ney market—the Government brought down
cattle to the Brisbane market, whereas before
that they sent their cattle to Sydney. The
members of the Opposition have always told
the Government that they should bring their
cattle here and sell them here, and not sell
them to New South Wales buyers.

The SPEAKER : Order! The hon. mem-
ber should deal with the motion.
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Mr, BEBBINGTON: I think the values
of stations have something to do with the
motion.

The SPEAKER : Order! The hon. mem-
ber will have to deal with the motion.

Mr., BEBBINGTON: I will, and I think
this has something to do with the motion.
It has something to do with the price paid
for the station. When we find the Govern-
ment going out and commandeering other
people’s meat

The SPEAKER: Order! If the hon.
member will read the motion he will see that
it is a motion of censure on the hon. member
for Dalby for a statement made by him in
this House.

Mr. BEBBINGTON: I am giving reasons
why the motion should not be passed, and
whr the hon. member made that statement
in the House, also the reason why the public
were so excited, because of the price paid
by the Government for this particular
station.

The SPEAKER : Order! I trust the hon.
member will read the evidence. He will
then find out on what grounds the hon. mem-
ber for Dalby made the statement.

Mr. BEBBINGTON: I know as much
about the evidence as the men who gave it.
T have been on the station and I know the
property; I know a good deal more about it
than some of the men who gave evidence.

The SPEAKER: Order! The hon. mem-
ber may have all that knowledge, but he is
not in order in giving it on the motion now
before the House.

Mr. BEBBINGTON: Those are some of
the reasons which led to the hon. member
making the statement he did make. What-
ever may be the opinion of the majority in
this House, we have our own opinion of the
matter, and the country have their opinion,
and that is, that the principle of Prussianism,
that might is right, is ruling in this House,
and that the Premier has made this a politi-
cal matter against men who come into con-
tact with him in his own business. If the
hon. member for Toowong and the hon.
member for Dalby were not in the same

profession as the Premier
GovERNMENT MEMBERS: They are not.

Mr. BEBBINGTON : We should probably
not have had this motion brought before the
House.

The SPEAKER : Order! The hon. mem-

ber is out of order in imputing motives.

Mr. BEBBINGTON : I think they are on
the surface, Mr. Speaker.

The SPEAKER : Order!

My, BEBBINGTON : That is the opinion
of the public, whatever may be done under
an arrangement which has been made in
caucus. Worse statements than the one re-
ferred to have been made by members on
the other side of the House. The hon. mem-
ber for Dalby stated that this particular
property could have been bought for a good

deal less than was paid for it,

[7 pom.] and I am of the same opinion,

. notwithstanding the fact that
prices have gone up abnormally. The prin-
cipal witness who could prove that it could
have been bought at the lower price was
never called. The principal witness was the
person mentioned by the hon. member for
Dalby in the House, and he was never
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brought forward. The commission was
appointed at a time when it was well known
that he could not be brought forward.

The PrEMIER: You khow that the inquiry
was held as soon after the slander as possible.

Mr. Srevens: As soon as you knew that
Mr. Gannan could not give evidence.

Mr. BEBBINGTON: A great deal has
been said about the statement of the hom.
member for Dalby—that he used his infor-
mation for political purposes. Political
means are really the only means we have of
changing the Government of this country.

The PreEMIER: Slander.

Mr. BEBBINGTON: No, absolutely no!
I pointed out that the Government itself had
been the cause of the extreme rises in value
of station property and station cattle, for
which they themselves, as well as the public,
were compelled afterwards to pay hundreds
and thousands of pounds.

The SPEAKHER: Order! The question
before the House is not the price of cattle
stations or the price of stock.

Mr. BEBBINGTOXN: There are cerfain
causes which lead up to certain results, and
it is necussary to expiain those causes. Then,
again, the fact of the Govermment paying
an unreasonable price for the station

The SPEAKER: Order! I have told the
hon. member repeatedly that the question of
the price of the stations has nothing to do
with the motion. and I ask him not to argue
that matter.

My, BEEBINGTON: The hon. member
for Dalby made a statement in the House,
and I am giving the riasons why he made
it. These wore things which were in the
public mind. The statement that he made
may not have been correct, and may not
he borne out by the judge’s report, and I
do not say thar it was correct; but I say
that the hon. member had a good deal of
reason for making it. There was an abnor-
mal rise of values, and enormous rises
were taking place, not only in cattle, but
in station properties.

The SPEAKER: Order! The hon. mem-
ber might be in order in discussing that
question on the Ilstimates, or he might have
dealt with it on the Financial Statement,
but it has nothing to de with this motion.

Mr., BEBBINGTON: If I am not allowed
{0 dizeuss that matter, then I am not allowed
to give my rearon why I think the hon.
member made the statement, and it is exactly
on the same principle that the chief witness
in the case was not called that we cannot
now give an explanation why the hon. mem-
ber made the statement. In the first place.
the chief witness relied upon to prove the
hon. member for Dalby’s case, that the pro-
perty was on the books, was not called, and
now we cannot give the reasons why the
hon. member made the statement, so the
public will know that to a certain extent
things are being coverad up, and are being
narrowed into a channel, so that the public
will not have the opportunity of judging
upon them. The only reason that I believe
in party Government is that it will prevent
grab, and it prevents things happening whick
may happen, and which we know do happen
in private businesses, In party Governmenut
one side is watching the other, and that
preventive of any of these things occur:ri

Mr. Bebbington.
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So long as the Government were not dealing
in these things. up to that time the public
had not the opinion that such things would
or were likely to oceur.

Mr. CoLrins: You have an evil mind.

Mr. BEBBINGTON: I see from the
cvidence that the Minister for Lands classes
himself as a commission agent—

“ Would you say that you had experi-
ence in station propertics?—I deal in

stock.

“ Before you became a Minister 7—
Yes; in the business of commission
agent.”

The Minister is a commission agent, and has
had experience in commission agency, and
he has a good many stores as well—

My, Guny: He must be a middleman.

Mr. BEBBINGTON: VYes. I think he
takes the biggest part of the middle, and
that there is very little left of the two ends
when the Minister has had the middle.
(Laughter.) As the Minister for Lands puts
himself down as a commission agent, he must
know that commission agents are looked
upon with suspicion.

The SECRETARY ror Ramwways: He does not
say that he is a commission agent; he says
that he was.

Mr. BEBBINGTON:
goes on—

*“Your experience was as a commission
agent prior to undertaking these pur-
chases, and you have got some experience
since?—I have a good general know-
ledge.”

i am only quoting this to ask why the
Minister for Lands, knowing that commission
agents have always been under suspicion,
did not give his evidence in a straightfor-
ward way. It was something like it is in
this House. ILveryone here knows that when
the Minister makes a speech two meanings
can_be placed upon it. If somebody says he
said one thing, the Mirister says he meant
something else, and will contradict him. I
want to show that the hon. member for Dalby
had some reason for making the statement,
although it may not be true, because the
public look upon commission agents with a
good deal of suspicion, and I say they have
reason to do so. It is only a short time ago
that there was a Royal Commission down
South inquiring into secret commissions.
Anyone who has anything to do with business
knows that when a middleman inspects a
thing he usually asks, “ What am I to get
out of it?” I do not want these evils of
secret commissions to be extended into public
matters.

The SPEAKER: Order! The hon. mem-
ber is arguing on wrong premises altogether.
This has nothing to do with the motion before
the House,

Mr. BEBBINGTON : It has to do with the
hon. member for Dalby. who made certain
statements,

The SPEAKER: Ovder! The hon. mem-
ber raises a question about the Minister, and
the commission agency business, and then
proceeds to discuss commission agents. As
long as he uses that to suppori his argument
on the motion, he is i order, but he con-
tinually drifts away from the main question
altogether,

[3fr. Beblbington.
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Mr. BEBBINGTON: If we are not going
to be allowed to bring these matters forward
before the House and make inquiry into
them, we are at a disadvantage.

The PrREMIER: You are allowed to do that,
but you are not allowed to make false state-
ments and say you can prove them.

Mr. BEBBINGTON: The hon. member
for Dalby sald he had reason to believe, and
that he could prove, that the station could be
bought for that price. If you look back ten
or twelve years before that time you will
find that these stations could have been
bought for, perhaps. £400 or £500.

The PreMIER: If he said that, there would
be no objection, but he said on the same day
that we bought it.

Mr. BEBBINGTON : Well, he made a mis-
statement ; that is all.

GOVERNMENT HIEMBERS: Oh! Oh!
Mr. BEBBINGTON : Perhaps Mr. Gannan

could have proved that the statement was
correct. We have any amount of things
appearing :in the Press from day to day.
Nearly every storekeeper in Brisbane adver-
tises things long after they have sold them
out. They appear to have a running adver-
tisement which continues to appear after the
goods are sold. An advertisement appears
in the newspapers that a certain article can
be bought at a stated price, but when you
go to get it you find that the storekeeper has
sold out. The Government simply advertised
one day that the price of galvanised iron
would be a certain price, but they bought it
up themselves and no one else could get any.
That is only a misstatement on the same
level with some that hon. members opposite
have been responsible for themselves.

Mr. Car1ER: The hon. member for Dalby
said he could prove it

Mr. BEBBINGTON: I could prove that
galvanised iron was advertised to be sold at
a certain price, but when I went to buy it I
could not get any. That is exactly the same
as this station business. When the hon.
member for Dalby made that statement he
believed from his information that it was
correct, and he believed that he could have
got that station for that price, but when he
went to get it he could not get it, just the
same as I could not get the iron.

The Presier: When he found out that he
was wrong, could he not have apologised ?

Mr. BEBBINGTON: I would state-that
I was wrong in saying I could get it, be-
cause I could not get it. Now, the whole
thing is simply a storm in a teacup. As the
hon. member for Burnett stated, the Govern-
ment simply want to use it to wash out all
the rest of their sins; they want to blind
the publie, thinking they will get something
in at all events. Here is the whole thing.
He says—

“71 find that the information then in
Mr. Vowles’s possession was not sufficient
to justify him in making the allegation
in sub-paragraph (a) because (1) of the
casual nature of the conversation and the
length of time that had elapsed; (2)
Mr. Gannan’s evidence was necessary
to prove the allegation, and he had not
been communicated with.”

Now, on those grounds I would certainly
advise the Government to have nothing more
to do with this. I would certainly advise
the Premier, independently of the Govern-
ment, to withdraw it. 1 will give you the
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reason why I ask that; and if the Premier
will do so I will have the pleasure of moving
that it be withdrawn., Whether he believes
it or not, whether he accepts it or not,
whether he is guilty of anything at all, the
public have the opinion that the Premier is
simply persecuting two rivals in his own
profession, (Government laughter.)

Mr. KiewaN: What about the persecution
of the Premier?

The PREMIER:
profession?

Mr. BEBBINGTON: T will tell you why

they are rivals in your profession.

The SPEAKER: Order! I do not intend
to allow the hon. member to pursue that line
of argument.

Mr. BEBBINGTON: I was giving a
reason why this motion was brought against
the hon: gentleman.

The SPEAKER: Orde:!

Mr, BEBBINGTON: On those grounds, if
the Premier would agree to accept the with-
drawal of the motion I would have very
much pleasure in moving it. I think every-
thing has been gained that may be. There
is no need to persecute anyone; thers is no
need to give an object lesson in orushing
militarism—that might is right in this House.
I think the Premicr should start on a new
course to-night and use reason and justice.
Because he has might on his side he should
not use it quite so often as he does; but he
should use reason and justice more often.

The PreMIER: It is because I have right
on my side.

Mr. BEBBINGTON :
matters.

The PreEMIER: I happen to have both; it
is a very good combination to have.

Mr. BEBBINGTON: There is nothing
more I would like to refer to; except that
the unsatisfactory evidence given by the
Minister for Lands practically on behalf of
the Government almost justifies the member,
not in the statement that it is true, but that
there was something wrong. Now, look here,
if a man gets up in this House to read a
letter and he omits part of that letter in
order to mislead this House—

The PreMier: Oh, no, he did mnot do it
to mislead this House.

Mr. BEBBINGTON: Is not that sufficient
to make people think there is something
wrong in the whole matter?

The Premier: He did not purport to read
the whole letter.

Mr. BEBBINGTON: No, it did not suit
his purpose; the Premier is right.

The PreMiER: No; I said “he did not
purport.”

Mr. BEBBINGTON: I know he did not,
because it did not suit his purpose, and he
admits it.

The PremIER: It was all before the Royal
Commission.

Mr. BEBBINGTON: When you get a
portion like that omitted it makes people sus-
picious; especmlly when a Minister goes
into court and ‘“ hums and hahs’’ and almost
contradicts himself, and in the beginning of
his evidence admits that he is a commission
agent. Like the Premier, I would ask the

How are they rivals in my

We differ on those
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Minister to start on a fresh course and let us
have straight dealing. I think the Premier
would be justified in withdrawing this now.

The PreMIER: If the hon. member with-
draws the statement and apologises, I shall
b2 very pleased to do so.

Mr. COLLINS (Bowen): I beg to move the
adjournment of the debate.

Question put and passed.

The resumption of the debate was made
an Order of the Day for Tuesday next.

The PREMIER: In view of the attitude
of the Opposition, I am going to put all the
evidence in ““ Hansard.”

Mr. MAcCARTNEY: Good man!
WAYS AND MEANS.
The CHAIRMAN presented the resolutions

from the Committee of Ways and Means.

Hox. J. A. FIHELLY: I beg to move
—That the resolutions be received.

Question put and passed.

The SPEAKER: Is it the pleasure of the
House that the resolutions be taken as read?
IHoxoURABLE MEMBERS : Hear, hear!

Hox. J. A, FIHELLY: I beg to move
—That the resolutions be agreed to by the
House.

Question put and passed.

A Bill was brought in founded on these
resolutions,

LAND TAX ACT AMENDMENT BILL.
First READING.

This Bill was read a first time, and the
second reading was made an Order of the
Day for Tuesday next.

INCOME TAX ACT AMENDMENT BILL.
Frrst READING.

- This Bill was read a first time, and the
second reading was made an Order of the
Day for Tuesday next.

MANY PEAKS TO NEW CANNINDAH
RAILWAY EXTENSION.

Question stated—

“That the Speaker do now leave the
chair, and the House resolve itself into
a Committee of the Whole to consider
the following resolutions:—

1. That the House approves of the
plan, section, and book of reference
of the proposed railway extension from
Many Peaks to New Cannindah, in
length 27 miles 53 chains.

2. That the plan, section, and book
of reference be forwarded to the Legis-
lative Council for their approval by
message in the usual form.”

On which Mr, Corser had moved—

“ That the question be amended by the

mlSSlOIl of all words after the initial
word ¢ That,’ with a view to the inser-
tion, in their place, of the words—



»

2673 Many Peaks to New

¢ ¢ The consideration of the plan, sec-
tion, and book of reference of the
27-mile Many Peaks to New Cannin-
dah Railway, at a cost of <£470,000,
be postponed, with the object of full
inguiry being made by a non-political
tribunal into the question whether the
interests of the State and Upper Bur-
nett would not be better served by the
construction of the 32-mile Mundubbera
through Eidsvold Railway, passed in
1914, at a cost of £146,000; and the
interests of the State and Port Curtis
by the construction of the 10-mile
Mount Larcom to Bracewell Scrub line
at under «£35,000, and other agricul-
tural lines.”

. Mr. H. L. HARTLEY (Fitzroy): In speak-
ing on this amendment, I regret that the
mover, in moving the amendment, shows that
the same old spirit is apparent. Some mem-
bers of the Opposition have always adversely
influenced the railway policy of Queensland.
They have not taken into consideration the
way in which a line should be built so as
to serve the best interests of the district and
the country; but they take into con-
sideration, in tco many instances, how it
will affect the capital of Queensland, or the
cities adjacent o the capital. That is what
the amendment of the hon. member for Bur-
nett means—the breaking right across of the
railway policy—a well-conceived and sound
policy of railway construction in Queensland
~—that there should be three systems of rail-
ways, the Southern, the Central, and the
Northern. That has bcen the system of de-
velopment in railway construction that has
held place in Queensland for a long time.
It has not alwuys been adhered to: in many
Instancis interests of Southern constituenciex
have been more often considered. I am very
pleased that at the present time there is a
Government in power which will see to the
impartial development of the State, irrespec-
tive of those considerations. Now, that has
always been held to be a sound policy by
most of the statesmen of Queensland—that
Queensland should be dividad into three djs-
tfricts financially. It was brought forward
first by Sir Samuel Griffith, in his Finan-
cial Districts Bill of 1887, and as far as
the finances of the State are concerned, and
as far as the present railway administration
in regard to revenue and expenditure is con-
cerned, it is still adhered to, and the classi-
fication still appears in the Fstimates under
the heading of three divisions. I think that
that should not be a policy that should be
lightly departed from. The hon. member, in
moving his amendment, has not shown any
good reason why it should be departed from.
The ports along the coast of Queensland
should be the head of a railway line. If
any hon. gentleman will take the trouble to
consider the geographical features of the
country and the district through which it is
nroposed to send this line, it will follow.
just as night follows day, that the natural
terminus of the Cannindah-Many Peaks line
is at the port of Gladstone. There can be no
question-—as the hon. member for Port
Curtis pointed out very strongly—that Glad-
stone is one of the finest ports on the Aus-
tralian coast. perhaps, with the exception of
Svdnev: and it has all the facilities of a
hig shipping vort. So that it is only just to
the people of that district, to the pioneers
and to the producers both in the mineral
field and in the agricultural fields, that they
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* should be able to get their produce to port

by the nearest and the cheapest route; and
when you comparc the distance from New
Cannindah to the various ports with which
it might be connected, it is easily seen that
Gladstone is the most favourably situated.
Now, the hon. member for Burnstt wants to
bring it down to Mundubbera; and naturally,
if it came to Mundubbera, all the produce
that was sent down—all the materials, timber,
mineral ores—would have to come to Mundub-
bera. Now I want to point out the different
distances to show what an unwise policy it
would be to construct a railway along the
route that the hon. member for Burmett's

smendment  would necessitate.
[7.30 p.m.] The distance from New {Cannin-

dah to Gladstone is 86 miles, and
from New Cannindah to ZIaryborough 184
miles. That chows that it is 98 miles further
from New Cannindah to Maryborough than
from New Cannindah to Gladstone. If you
take Bundaberg into consideration, then
frem New (Clannindah to Bundaberg it would
be 139 miles, or 53 miles in favour of the
route to Gladstone. If hon. gentlemen oppo-
site will take those distaices into considera-
tion they will sce what it means to the pro-
ducer or anyone sending material along that
line, and they will come to no other con-
clusion than that the best line for the
development of the country should be alang
the route chosen by the Secretary for Rail-
ways and shown in the plans now before the
{ommittee. 1 have heard somecone ohjecting
to this line on the score of expense—because
it would be a very expensive line to huild
If anyone will consider the extra distance
to Mundubbera, that argument will not hold
water for a moment. Tven if the natural
features of the country between New Cannin-
dah and Many Peaks are a little more moun-
tainous, and if there are some greater engi-
neering difficulties to overcoms than by the
other route, it stands to reason that 100
extra miles would practically double the cost
of that line as against the line to Many
Peaks. Hon. gentlemen opposite were not
so concerned aboubt the cost when they
recommended in this Chamber the building

of the via recta or the line from Mount
Fdwards to Maryvale.
Mr. SteveNns: Do you know what the

majority was on that occasion?

Mr. H. L. HARTLEY: I am not con-
cerned how it was carried. I am not worry-
ing whether the line will be built or not, but
I want to point out that they did not con-
sider the expense of the building of that line
when they passed it through this House. The
via recta was estimated to cost, in 1914,
£389,384. If-it were built at the present time
that estimate would have to be increased by
40 per cent. on account of the increased cost
of steel rails, fishplates, and all railway
material, and increased cost of labour. With
that 40 per cent. added, therefore, the via
redta wiould cost £544,000 as against
£470,000 for the line from Many Peaks to
New Cannindah, or £74,000 for the lesser
distance. 'The via vecta is 27 miles T8
chains in length, and the line from Many
Peaks to New [Cannindah 27 miles 53 chains,
of 25 chains shorter than the via reocta.
The arpument that it is an expensive line,
therefore, falls flat. The other proposal
from New Cannindal to Maryborough would
involve a far bigger expenditure, because
there is 100 miles of extra mileage to
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Maryborough. The hon. member for War-
wick and the hon. memebr for Wide Bay
. supported the building of the via recta. Did
they take into comsideration the expensive
nature of the line for the short distance it
was going to run? No; they took into con-
sideration the advantave it would be to the
district in that partlculal part by having a
shorter route through to Warwick. The same
attitude should be taken hy hon. members on
this ocecasion. The late hon. member for
Maryborough, the father of the hon. gentle-
man who moved this amendment, also sup-
ported the via recta.

Mr. Kirwan: He supported the via recta
hecauso he wanted them to support the
Tinana deviation, but ther did him in.

Mr. H. L. HARTLEY : Is that what hap-
neped?  If they supported a line like that,
then on common ground they ought to be
zble to support a line like this, where more
particularly it has been shown that Glad-
stone is the natural port. All the country
o the west of Gladstone is rightly in its
hinterland, and the railway should run to
bring produce to the scaboard at the quickest
time it can be done, and at the least cost.
The Hon. Mr. Dunn, in another Chamber,
supported the via recta. but he opposed
this line. I cannot understand the hon.
wentleman supporting one line and trying
to defeat this proposal. This district, as has
been shown by the hon. member for Port
Curtis, is ons of the richest mineral districts
we hsve in Queensland.  The Glassford
Creek mine has been hung up for a very
long time on account of the inahility of the
promoters to get the ordinary requirements
of mining there at anything like the cost
that would make it profitable to furn out
copper. If this line had been built when
the Government first came into power. then
it is very probable that two big mines—the
New {(annindah mine, which the mining
reports show is turning out some very valu-
«ble ore, and the Glassford Creek mine
would be turning out big quantities of copper
at the present time, and be finding a good
deal of employment for many miners and
copper smelters. I now want to further
emphasise another point. Suppose the
amendment of the hon. member for Burnett
is carried, what will be the financial effect
on the people of the New Cannindah district,
who will have to use the line under his pro-
posal? There is ahout 100 miles extra car-
riage, and everyone knows that in develop-
ing a mining proposition it has now hecome
a quostion of whether you can carry the ore
and conduct smelting operations at a cost
sufficient in price to enable you to get a
certain price over cost of production, and
100 miles of extra carriage would make a
great deal of difference between profit and
loss in many mining ventures like that. I
have just taken the trouble to find out the
rates that would be charged on each of the
voutes. The special mineral rate for ore
and minerals is 8s. per tou for 84 miles.
The rate from New Cannindah to Gladstone
on mineral ore and minerals would be 8s.
per ton, and on the route from New Cannin-
dah to Maryborough, via Mundubbera, it
would be 14s. 8d. The effect of the amend-
ment of the hon. member for Burnett would
be to impose a penalty on all mining pro-
nositions between New Cannindah and Mun-
dubbiera of something like 6s. 8d. per ton.
That difference would be sufficient, so far as
the low-grade propositions were concerned,
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to keep them barren and ldle for many years
to come. The hon. member poses as the
friend of the agriculturists and producers
from the land. I want to show what effect
his proposal would have on the farmers and
producers in the viecinity of New Cannindah,
and on the northern and north-western side,
The special rates for agriculture on the rail-
way from New Cannindah to Gladstone
would be 12s. 11d. per ton, and from New
Cannindah to Maryborough £1 2s. 11d. per
ton, or & penalty on the farmers of 9s. 5d.
per ton. See what that would mean in the
case of 10-ton lots. It would mean that the
rate to Marvhorough would be £4 14+ 2d.
more than to Gladstone. In other words, if
the amendment is carried. it will have the
effect of penalising the farmer and producer
to the extent of £4 14s. 2d. per 10-ton lot,
in getting their produce to the nearest port.
I would like any hon. gentleman who studies
the interests of the farmers to tell me if
that would be a good thing for the farming
community along that railway. It stands
to reason that the natural route of the line
is to Gladstone. 1 consider the amendment
moved by the hon. momber for Burnett is a
special picce of logrolling on behalf of him-
self and the Tery candidate-elect for Port
Curtis at the next election. They scem ton
bie a very happy couple at the present time.
It is only a couple of weeks ago that the
hon. member for Burnett visited the Port
Curtis electorate and addressed a meeting
there with the Tory candidate-elect, Mr.
Kessell. They seemed to have had a very
happy time. T just want to quote something
in regard to this amendment of the hon,
member for Burnett that will show how the
line was regarded up there by the hon.
gentleman, and show whers the suggestion
for thiz amendment came from. 1 am quot-
ing from the “Daily Standard” of Wed-
nesday, the 10th October. It savs—

“Port Curris PoriTIcs.
“ CANDIDATE WITH PLENTY OF MONEY.

“A  Mount Larcom
writing on 6th October, records that Mr.
Corser, BLL.A., ac*ompamod by Messrs.
Macfarlane and Xessell, motored out
and delivered a series of speeches on
Saturday night. Mr. Kessell, who was

correspondent,

infroduced as the Tory condidate
selected to oppose Mr. Carter. M.L.A.,
spoke of the interest he had always

taken in Mount Larcom Hall, and stated
he would be pleased to pay off the exist-
ing debt, which he understood amounted
to £50.”

Mr. KmrwaN: Political graft.

Mr. H. L. HARTLEY : We have hsard a
lot about inducements in this House, but if
that was not a substantial inducement to the
electors there, I would like to know what it
is. I will finish the paragraph—

“Mr. Corser eulogised Mr. Kesscll’s
munificence, and honed they would
reward him for it when the time came
round. Mr, Corser. after the wusual
attacks on the Labour party, on sterco-
typed subjects, strongly condemned the
Many Peaks-New Cannindah railway
proposal. He intimated that in the
Assembly he would oppose that line, and
advocate instead the Mount Larcom-
Bracewell and Coulston Lakes lines. It
was poticeable that Mr. Kessell sat and
listened without demur to the condems-
nation of the Mount Cannindah line, so

Mr. H. L. Hartley.]
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what will his Gladstone supporters now
think of their champion?”

There was the inspiration to the amendment
that has been moved by the hon. member.
The 10-mile line he refers to is the line from
Mount Larcom to Bracewell, and the 22-
mile is the line from Mundubbera to Eids-
vold. It simply shows in the light of the
meeting there, and his ubterances there, a
pretty little piece of work that was put in
by the hon. member. The Mount Larcom
residents should be grateful for the offer of
£50 to pay off the debt on their hall and the
promise of a 10-mile railway from Mount
Larcom to Bracewell. A good portion of
that line, T understand, would go through
the Tory candidate’s property. What the
Mount . Larcom people will get out of it
is very problematical, and what the Glad-
stone people will think of it I cannot say.
If the Gladstone people realise that the Tory
candidate-elect, Mr. Kessell, for the sake of
a 10-mile line from Mount Larcom to
Bracewell, is prepared to knock out what
appears to be a splendid paying proposition
~the New Cannindah Railway—I believe
they will tell the Tory candidate that they
do not want him to represent that district.

Hon. J. Tormie: Do you say it will be a
splendid paying line?

Mr. H. L. HARTLEY: I say it promises
to be a splendid paying line—that is, the
zlaléwa,y from Many Peaks to New Cannin-

ah.

~ Mr. Forsyra: It will be seven years before
it is buils.

Mr. H L. HARTLEY: The hon. member
must be reckoning on the “ go slow ” tactics
of his friends in the Legislative Council
when he says that. I notice that they pro-
pose to go to bed at 9 o’clock at night. The
New Cannindah district is one of the finest
mining districts in the State outside Clon-
curry, and it has languished for many years.
It is a district which ought to give employ-
ment to 4,000 or 5,000 miners, and at the
present time it is little more than a cattle-
producing district, simply because of the
apathy and jealousy of the past Government
with which many members opposite were
associated. In a time like the present, a
mining line with the fine prospect this line
has ought to be constructed. The district
contains, as the hon, member for Port Curtis
has said, many deposits of mineral ore. It
only requires a short study of the ‘ Queens-
land Mining Journal” to see the value of
those ores, which are practically undeveloped
for want of railway communication with a
seaport.

Mr. MurrHY: Your own Public Works
Commission turned down a similar proposi-
tion a short time ago.

Mr. H. L. HARTLEY: I am not con-
cerned with any other proposition at the
present. My concern is that at a time like
the present, when there is a great necessity
for opening up all avenues of industry that
can be opened up, and when copper is so
urgently required for war purposes, this line
should be held up as long as it has been by
the friends of members opposite in the Legis-
lative Council. I hope the House will con-
sider that this line is part of the general
railway development policy of the State, and
that it is due to the people in Gladstone and
the people in the distriect which will be
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served by the railway that they should be
given the rightful outlet for their own hin-
terland. I trust that the motion will be car-
ried, and that as soon as the railway is
approved of the Minister will lose no time
in putting on as many men as possible to
push on with the construction of the line.

At ten minutes to 8 o’clock,

Mr. BERTRAM, - Chairman of Committees,
relieved the Speaker in the chair.

Hox. J. TOLMIE (Zoowoomba): I desire
to say a word or two in connection with this
line before it goes into Committee. As-a
general rule, I do not oppose railways, be-
cause 1 believe in the building of railways
into country which can be settled, so that
they will open up the country and give
settlers the means of communication with a
port. It is to be regretted that this railway
is introduced in the way it is year after year
by the Government without giving better
reasons for its introduction than they have
given up to the present time. You are
aware, Mr. Deputy Speaker, that we passed
legislation during the first year the present
party were in power to cnable the Govern-
ment to appoint a roving commission for the
purpose of investigating railway proposals
and other works. As a matter of fact, it is
laid down in that legislation that no proposi-
tion involving a greater outlay than £20,000
shall be undertaken until a report has been
obtained from that commission. I think you.
Mr. Deputy Speaker, were one of the firse
members appointed on that roving commis-
sion, and you know something about it. You
know that the commission is starving for
want of work., You know that they have
exhausted all their avenues of employment,
and were practically unemployed until they
were sent to the far North to report on a
6-mile line. This railway, it is said, Is
going to cost £470,000. Let us put it in
round numbers at £500,000, because it Wl]l
probably ran over that amount by the time
the line is completed. Although this line has
been before the Chamber on three different
occasions, yet no effort has been made to
employ the energy of the Public Works Com-
mission to examine the country the railway
will travel and report upon it. Is that on
the face of it mot a very suspicious thing?
What is wrong? TIs it that the commission
is wrong, or that the railway is wrong?
There seems to be something about it that
requires fuller explanation than has been
given up to the present time. We are asked
to spend £470,000 upon a line which it is
said will be the means of developing a new
copper-field called Mount Theodore. I do
not know whether that name has come into
existence within recent times. But I have
not seen in the Press or anywhere else any
very great demand made by the general
public for the development of this particular
mine.

Mr. CartEr: You have not read the “ Min-
ing Journal,” and you show your ignorance.

Hon. J. TOLMIE: I may not have read
the * Mining Journal,”’ neither do I read
the “ Government Gazette’” when I am look-
ing for general news. If this Mount Theodore
mine contains ores of the quality and quan-
tity which necessitates the construction of a
line at a cost of £470,000, we should have
seen more about it in the columns of the
newspapers circulating in the district. It
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was only when I heard the Minister for
Railways speaking the other night that I
became aware of the fact that there was
such a district as Mount Theodore awaiting
development by the construction of a line
which will cost £470,000, and which will not
go within 6 miles of the place, because the
country is so precipitous that it is not pos-
sible to take the railway there. They tell
me that the mountains there are so steep that
even kangaroos have to wear breechings in
going down the hillside. I know something
of the district, and I know the great meed
there is for the opening of the Burnett dis-
trict, but if we are to open the Burnett dis-
trict in the most effective way we must pro-
ceed from Mundubbera.

Mr. CarterR: Through 40 miles of desert.

Hon. J. TOLMIE: No.

Mr. CsrrER: Forty miles of poor country.

Hox. J. TOLMIE: I am not going to
accept any such statement from the hon.
member.

Mr. CarTEr: You read your own report.

Hon. J. TOLMIE: As a matter of fact, I
refreshed my memory by reading it a few
moments ago.

The SECRETARY FOR RAILWAYS: So that you
will not contradict yourself,

Hox. J. TOLMIE: A very good thing, too.

I want to point out that there is desert
country in the Burnett district, and it ought
to have been developed before now, but the
developmental process should pro-

[8 p.m.] ceed from the Mundubbera end.

f you look at the map that is

placed before us you will see the Central line
running from Gladstone right down to Many
Peaks, and then it proceeds across the Dawes
Range. It crosses the Dawes Range just
15 miles from Many Peaks, and comes into
New Cannindah at 27 miles, so that the con-
struction of that line will only take you
12 miles over the range, and 12 miles over
the range will only serve a limited number
of selections, and those selections are graz-
ing farms. If my memory serves me cor-
rectly, they have about 25 years yet to run
before they can be utilised for the purpose
of close settlement. We are told that before
you get to New Cannindah this line will de-
flect to the west and open up the country
about Clonwell, which is all beautiful coun-
try, and will then cross the range to Raw-
belle. Between New Cannindah and Raw-
belle you hardly realise that there is a range,
and, when you get on the top of that you
have a beautiful vista stretching all the way
in the direction of Taroom. If that country
is to be opened up, it cannot be opened up
by the line we are speaking of now, because
before it gets into Clonwell or Cania it has
got to get through a range, not as difficult
as the one it comes up in the first place, but
nevertheless over a range that is going to
cost many thousands of pounds to get over,
and until it does that it is not going to open
up hardly a single acre, as far as the Lands
Department is concerned. If the Lands De-
partment want to open that country, then
they will have to proceed from Mundubbera
and through Eidsvold, and at a distance of
eight ‘or ten miles from Ridsvold passing
Dalgangal, Old Cannindah, and on to New
Cannindah, up in the direction of Splinter
Creek. In that area there is beautiful coun-
try. and the railway would pass through the
Holywell Scrub. The Holywell Scrub has
been settled within the last three and a-half

19176

[18 OcrosEer.] Cannindah Reilway Exteasion. 2081 ‘

years by settlers who have taken up from
80 to 160 acres. There is at present a large
population a long distance from railway com-
munication—all small men on good scrub
land—and by consiructing the line from Mun-
dubbera ou give them their opportunity, but
by building this line spoken upon by the hon.
member for Port Curtis you only deal with
the Clonwell Brothers’ selection and a few
other grazing selections, and as they have
long periods to run, there cannot possibly be
any close settlement there for a long time.
On the other hand, the line that would geo
to the left and ultimately pass on to Raw-
belle would traverse country that is watered
by Three Moon Creek, the Nogoa, and the
Burnett rivers, all fine streams with per-
manent water, and with very substantial
streams running into them. That line would
tap all the good country I have spoken of.
And all through that area you are within a
few miles of good scrub land. Some of the
foothills of the ranges there are clothed with
beautiful scrub, and have rich soil ready for
agricultural purposes, and being well watered
as it is, it would well repay any Government
to build that line. In building that line
vou are not traversing great mountain ranges,
costing a very considerable amount of money
to cross. Then, when you have built the
line through these ranges you have only ad-
vanced a very small distance indeed, and you
are not going to tap any seftlement of an
extended nature nor any area that is likely
to be quickly developed. -

Mr. H. L. HARTLEY:
low the mines.

Hox. J. TOLMIE: All we can say with
regard to settlement following the mines is
that the mine has not provided very much for
settlement at the present time. This line
appears to be for one purpose, and one pur-
pose only; that is to secure the seat of the
hon. member for Port Curtis. In order to
secure his services we are to build a line
costing £470,000. He should be very proud
of himself to think that his services are of
that worth to the State.

Mr. Carrer: Fortunately, the Government
have a broader mind than yours. They are
building it for national purposes.

Hown. J. TOLMIE: It may be an excellent
thing to nationalise the hon. member, but
notwithstanding that, the price we are to
pay for the construction of this railway ap-
pears to my mind to be altogether too great.
I would like to see the Burnett opened np,
and it ought to be opened ap, but if it is to
be opened up in the most cffective way, it
should be opened up in the directicn I have
referred to. I have gone over the country
and I can see it in my mind’s eye now. I
know the beauty of the country; I know the
wealth of the country, and I know the parts
that are suitable for developmental purpeses,
and I know that the railway as outlined
before us now is not going to tap any country
that is suitable for settlement, We have the
myth placed before us that it is'going to 'e a
great timber railway. Nothing is further
from the truth than a statement of that kind.
Where that railway crosses the mouniains
it is all ring-barked country. It is not mill-
ing timber at all. It is vountry that has been
ring-barked for pastoral purposes, and that
is so on the Burnett side as well. If you read
the report of the Commissioner for Railways,
you will find he says that on the .other side
of the range it is cattle country, too, and is
used for pastoral purposes. That is the

Hon. J. Tolmte.l

Settlement will fol-
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country through which we are asked to build
a railway costing 4£470,000, with gradients of
1 in 33, and when the railway is eonstracted
the Commissioner tells us that the most we
can expect from it, after paying working ex-
penses for three days a week, is 10s. per
cent, If the Government can get mouey at
4% per cent. for the purpose of building that
line that means a loss of £4 per cent. on
£500,000; that is £20,000 to be lost every
year for we do not know how many -years.
It may go on for twenty years before that
railway would pay even the interest on the
cost of construction.

We are asked to bear this loss of fully
£50,000 at a time when the Government find
themselves in a position that they do not
know how to finance the country. I appeal
to the common sense of hon. members, as to
whether they think that the outside public
who have a knowledge of the conditions
are going to give any credit to a (overn-
ment which is going to build a line which the
Commissioner says for many many years
will only pay 10s. per cent., which means
a loss of 4 per cent., or £20,000 on the cost of
construction, It is going to open up no new
settlement, because, up to the point where
it terminates, it is passing through grazing
selections, and then it gets into the pre-
emptives or freeholds of the New Can-
nindah property, and it is only when it gets
further south than that, and passes old
Cannindah, apd gets into land round about
Dalgangal, that the country can be utilised
for settlement.

Mr. CirTER: You do not know what you
are talking about,

Hox, J. TOLMIE: I am afraid I know
a little bit too much for the hon. member
with regard to the country I am speaking of.
I know that the hon. member does not know
it. If he does. then he is suppressing his
knowledge and not allowing the House to
get the benefit of it. Ys he acting rightly
by his party and his country when he sup-
presses the knowledge that he ought to have
with regard to this land, Tt is a very unde-
sirable thing to build this line at the present
time when it is not going to be a paving
concern. as there is beautiful country waiting
to be developed there which can be developed
at » much less cost to the State than by
building this line, and on which a large
population can be settled. We are told that
this is for the soldiers, but we know that,
anless the Government resume the selections:
and I ‘am prepared to admft that the
selections are good grazing country and fairly
well watered—they are good to the Dawes

* Range. but they are not so well watered
when vou get down to Splinter Creek.
Neverthelexs, the country is good, and I have
seen beautiful cvops growing on some of the
selections, but the country is practically used
for grazing purposes only. The leases have
twenty-five years to run, and you know that
vou have to pay to resume land like that.

Mr. Carter! There is not an acre with
twenty-five years fo run, and you know it.

Hox. J. TOLMIE: Tt will increase the
purchasing price to the soldier selectors.
I should be very glad if I could heartily
advocate the construction of the line, because
I am not one of those who are opposed to
the construction of railways. I believe in
the construction of railways.

Mr. H. L, HarTLEY: As long as they come
to Brisbane.

[Hon. J. Tolmie.
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Hox. J. TOLMIE : Tither in that district
or any other district in Queensland. I think
there is a greater necessity for railways in
the Burnett district, with its good scrub
and forest land and well watered areas, but
we are starting at the wrong end, and that
is the reason why I think that this motion
should not be accepted.

Mr. MURPHY {(Burke)y: The hon. mem-
ber for Fitzroy gave us a dissertation this
evening upon the railway policy of the
Government. He pointed out that it was
desirable that a certain amount of money
should be spent yearly in building railways
in the North, the South, and the Central
districts. Does the hon, member realise the
position of the finances, not only of Queens-
land, but the rvest of Australia? He is ask-
ing this House to consent to the éxpenditure
of half a million of money on the construction
of a railway at the present time, which the
Railway Commissioner strongly advises the
House, in his report, to leave alone.

Mr. Carrter: He does not do anything
of the kind.

Mr. MURPHY : What more can the Com-
missioner say against the construction of a
railway than that it is going to cost half a
million of money, and that there is going to
be a loss of £20,000 a year on it? We find
that the Treasurer has had to go to Mel-
bourne to interview the Federal Treasurer
with regard to loan money. The amount
mentioned in the agreement entered into
some time ago between certain Treasurers
of the States and the Federal Government,
has had to be broken, and Mr. Theodore has
been informed that next year the Federal
Government will not be in a position to give
the loan money which was previously agreed
on. Sir John Forrest has told not only the
Treasurer of Queensland? but the Treasurers
of other States which have been a party lo
the agreement, that they must expect a very
large reduction in the amount which has
been promised.

The SECRETARY FOR Ramways: What did
the Treasurer of his own native State say
about it?

Mr, MURPHY: The Treasurer of his
own native State would probably say about
Sir John Forrest what the Treasurer of
Queensland and other State Treasurers in
Australia are saying to-day. Like Oliver
Twist they want more. The State Trea-
surers are continually looking for money,
but anyvone who gives the most casual atten-
tion to the world’s finances to-day must
know that every country at the pre-
sent moment is being pushed for money.
Yet this House is asked to casually agree
to the expenditure of £500,000 upon a rail-
way to Mount Cannindah. I listened to the
hon. member for Port Curtis the other
evening, and he delivered a speech similar
to those which have been delivered in this
Chamber in connection with the passage of
every railway that we have heen asked to
deal with, ¥as not every member for a
district in which it was proposed to con-
struct a railway told us that the railway
would pay from the start—that it would
open up timber resources, and there would
be mining propositions which would give
employment to large numbers of men, and
add to the wealth of the State, and that if
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the timber failed, and the mining proposi-
tions were unpayable, then there would be
~an opportunity of settlirg people on the land?

Mr. H, L. Hamrtiey: What did you say
when vou borrowed that £18,000 for Croydon
deep sinking ?

Mr. MURPHY: I am continually taken
to task because, out of its beneficence, the
State has decided to expend £18,000 in pros-
pecting the deep levels of the Croydon Gold-
field,which, like Charters Towers and Gympie
and other goldfields of the State, has re-
turned revenue to the State amounting fto
thousands of pounds.

Mr. H. J. Ryax: How does the Croydon
line pay?

Mr. MURPHY: Better than the Cook-
town line, which is in the hon. gentle-
man’s district, Yet the hon. gentleman, who
is continually referring to £18,000 which the
Mines Department is spending in the Croy-
don district, stands up in his place in Parlia-
ment and glibly asks us to spend half a
million of money in building a railway to
Cannindah, and to place the State in the
position that it will lose £20,000 a year for
a good number of years to come.

Mr. H. L. Hartiey: You are a very poor
judge of mining if you think that.

. Mr. MURPHY : I know more about min-
ing than the hon. gentleman, because I
have done my ‘‘ dough” in mining.

Mr. H. L. Hartrey : That shows you don’t
know anything about it, then.

Mr. MURPHY: Well, my experience in
mining. and the experience of most men who
have lived for any length of time upon
mining fields, is that it is the amateur who,
as a rule, makes money. Now, the hon.
gentleman has advised us to agree to the
expenditure of half a million of money in
building a railway to some copper mines at
Mount Cannindah, and he has assured us
that, with railway construction, those mines
would not only give employment to a large
number of men, but will return thousands of
pounds in dividends, and not only add to
the prosperity of Queensland, but make that
particular part of Queensland flourish * like
the green bay tree.” Now, let me just
traverse some of the remarks that have been
made in connection with this proposal. First
of all I want to refer to the statement of
the hon. member for Fitzroy with regard to
some electioneering “stuff” or * guff ’—
whatever was the term he applied to it—that
was recently delivered in the Gladstone dis-
trict. There was a rich man there evidently
—a Mr. Kessell—who, it is stated, is likely
to be a candidabe for the electorate at the
forthcoming elections. The hon, gentleman
tells us that in a fit of benevolence——

Mr. H. L. Harmey: I did not say “in a
fit of benevolence.”

Mr. MURPHY : He presented £50 to some
institution. He said that the hon. member
for Burnett and other gentleman who were
assisting, in the company of Mr. Kessell,
at that particular meeting' cheered him to
the echo and asked the electors to remember
his kind action on polling day and send him
into Parliament,

Mr. H. L. HaRTLEY:
that.

Mr. MURPHY : Well, practically. I say
that you said Mr. Corser and those who were

No, I did not say
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with him made use of those remarks. I
merely refer to that matter with the idea of
pointing a moral and adorning a tale. Now,
we have heard a great deal about this £50;
vet what is the proposal in connection with
this railway? That the State of Queensland
shall, at a time when its finances are in a
bad state, find half a 'mililon of money with
the object of again returning the hon. gentle-
man who represents that elecorate in Parlia-
ment.
A GovesnveExT MEeMBER: He is worth it.

Mr. MURPHY : I am not going to argue
with you on that. Supposing the hon. gentle-
men who are sitting on that side of the
Chamber were sitting on this side of the
Chamber, and a Liberal Government came
down with a proposal to spend half a million
of money at the present time when money is
dear, and proposed to saddle the State with
a loss of £20,000 a year, does anyone for
a moment suppose there would be unanimity
of opinion upon that side with regard to its
passage through this Chamber? I don’t
think there would be. I refeired recently
to some remarks which the hon. member for
Port Curtis had made in connection with his
advocacy of the passage of this line. We
have heard all those stories before, and what
has been the result so far as Queensland is
concerned ?

Mr. H. L. Harrrey: A lot of bad-paying
lines on the Downs.

Mr. MURPHY : The loss on our railways
last year of considerably over three-quarters
of a million.,

Mr. H. L. Harreey: On the agricultural
lines of the Darling Downs.

Hon. W. D. ARMSTRONG: Name one.

Mr., H. L. Hartrey : All bar the main line.

Hon. W. D. ArmsTRONG: You don’t know
what you are talking about.

Mr. Coorer: Warwick to Goondiwindi.

The DEPUTY SPEAXER: Order!

Mr. MURPHY : Some of those gentlemen
who, to-night, are advocating the expenditure
of this huge sum of money in the construc-
tion of a railway which is not likely to
pay for quite .a number of vears to come
were with me on this side of the Chamber
when we vigorouctly oppcesed the expenditure
of money in the construction of the vid recta.
Why, then, should a change from one side
of the House to the cther make all this dif-
ference in their opinions on railway con-
struction ?

The SECRETARY FOR RALwAys: Was that
principally owing to the amendment moved
by the hon. member for Rosewood?

Mr. MURPHY : My recollection does not
enable me to reply to the Secretary for
Railways, but I would like to put this ques-
tion before the Secretary fcr Railways: We
kncw there have been quite a number of
deputations since he assumed command of the
Railway Department in copnection with
pushing on the construction of certain rail-
ways which already have been passed; and
what has been invariably the reply of the
hon. gentleman? He has pointed out that
the Government has to be particularly
cautious with regard to the expenditure of
its loan money; that it is difficult to obtain
material; and he has asked them to be
sympathetic with the Goverrment in the
position in which his Department now finds

Mr. Murpky.]
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itself. Now, would not it be wise for this
Chamber to postpone the consideration of
this railway? I know absolutely nothing
about the country through which it is going
to pass.

Mr. H. L. Harriey: It does not matter
about the country; you want to know about
the mine.

Mr. MURPHY : The hon. gentleman again
dwells upon the mine. Who owns the mines?
Are the mines the property of the State, or
are they the property of private individuals?
And are we at this time of war—when money
is difficult to obtain, when unemployment 1s
rife—are we to agree to the expenditure of
half a miilion of money in order that owners
of certain copper mines in the Cannindah
district may be able to make money out of
them? We have to consider the general
taxpayers; we have to consider the great
mass of the working people in Queensland.

Mr. H. L. HARTIEY:
considering.

My, MURPHY: Well, if hon. gentlemen
are considering the welfare of the mass of the
people of Queensland, they can utilise loan
money better in the construction of a rail-
way going from Blair Athol to Charters
Towers—the premier goldfield of Queensland
—whnich would enable minecowners in that
locality to give more employment than is
likely to be given by the construction of
this railway to open up certain copper pro-

positions at Mount Cannindah.

[8.30 p.m.] There is no justification for the

introduction of this proposal.
There is no justification on the part of the
Government for asking this Chamber to
agree to the expenditure of this huge sum
of money upon a non-productive work. What
has been the stand taken by the Government
during this session with regard to the expen-
diture of loan money. They have pointed
out the necessity of husbanding their re-
gsources. They have pointed out ‘that it is
desirable that the Government should be in
a position with the money at its command to
give employment to the working classes.
They have pointed out to us on more than
one occasion that so many railways have
been passed in Qucensland that it will take
years to construct them. Are there not some
railways passed the immediate construction
of which would be more likely to assist in
the development of Queensland than the
construction of this proposed railway?
Amongst the dozens of railways passed by
this Chamber and which are awailting con-
struction, surely to goodness the head of
the Railway Department and the Govern-
ment can pick some line on which the ex-
penditure of money could be carried out
with the object of giving the employment
which hon. members opposite talk so much
about. I am not going to vote for the con-
struction of this railway, because I am mnob
going to saddle the people of Queensland
with a burden of half a million of money
for an unproductive work. I do not think
it is the duty of the Government to pass a
single railway proposal at the present time.
Why are we doing it in the last session of a
dying Parliament?

Mr. H. L. HarTLEY: We have done it in
every session of this Parliament.

Mr. MURPHY : What has been the atti-
tude taken up by hon members opposite?

{Mr. Murphy.

That is what we are
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Thes told p=zt Governments that they were
passing railwarys for the purpose of bribing
the electors.

Mr. H. L. Harriey: They passed sixteen
railways at once.

Mr. MURPHY : What did the hon. gentle-
man’s party do? They went out into the
country and told the people that those sixteen
railwars were passed with the object of
bribing certain electors. They told the people
there was no desire on the part of the Go-
vernment to construct any of those railways,
that they were mere political fireworks, and
were only put through with the object of
trying to induce the electors to return the
sitting members to Parliament.

My, OsmrrER: That was so with the via
recta,

Mr. MURPHY: If the via recta were
passed to help certain representatives of

Dowrs constituencies back into the House,
then the Government never started that rail-
way.

My, CantER: They did not get the chance.
The public weuld znot trust them.

Mr. MURPHY: This Government has not
carried out the instruction of Parliament to
build that railway. There are hon. gentlemen
opposite who supporied the construction of
the via recta.

Mr., O’SuLnivax: Very few of them.

Mr. MURPHY : There are some. What
has been the policy of railway construction in
the past? KEvery railway that was brought
down was purely a non-party measure, and
every member wae privileged to vote as he
pleased on every railway.

The SECRETARY TFOR RAILWAYS:
yvou going back on that now?

Mr. MURPHY: I am not making it non-
party. Have we heard one hon. gentleman
opposite say onc word against this railway
since it has been introduced into the Cham-
ber, alihough when they were in opposition
they were continually talking about the
wasteful expenditure, not only in connection
with the consolidated revenue, but on account
of the loan monev? Yet they make no pro-
test at all against this railway. This is the
third time that it has come before the Cham-
ber. Recollect that we will be doing a
financial injury to Queenslzond if we pass this
railway. There is another phase of the
question. An arrangement has been made
between the Treasurer and the Federal
Government with regard to the amount of
money that can be borrowed each year.
About £5.000,000 is divided among the dif-
ferent States. How can this Government
place a loan on the local market and ask the
people to subscribe to a Queensland loan
if they introduce a proposal like this to
wipe out that money? Fancy asking the
people of Queensland for a loan of £1,000,000
and asking them to put their hard-earned
money into the loan when half of it will be
taken for the construction of a line which
the Railway Commissioner tells us will not
pay, and for which the consolidated revenue
will have to find something like £20.000 a
year. In the interests of financial honestr,
in the interests of the great masses of the
people, every member should turn his atten-
tion to that aspect. If a division is called on
every stage of this proposal, I shall record
my vote against it, because I believe it to be
wasteful expenditure of public money.

Why are
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Mr. WACARTNEY (Toowony): I ap-
-proach the subject of this motion with a con-
-siderable amount of fear and trembling. In
view of the new parliamentary instrument
brought to bear upon the freedom of speech
in this House, I am somewhat afraid that if
we give expression to our opinion ax to the
chject for the introduction of this railway,
a vote of cousure and expuldlon might
possibly be brought ‘o bear upon us
Nevertheless, hon. members ought to be some-
what straightforward in the interests of the
country in saying what they think about a
proposal of this kind. T am of opinion that
the hon. member who has just resumed his
seat is right when he rays that the object of
the introduction of this railway at the present
time is merely to secure the seat of the hon.
membker for Port Cartis.

Ar. SroprorD: That is not necessary.

Mr. CartEr: You are not game to come
up and contest it with me.

Mr. MACARTNEY: We know that the
passaxe of this motion will have no imme-
diate effect, if any at all, because we recognise
that, even if passed, there is no chance what-
ever of the Government being able to con-
struct it. We know from the position of the
finances at the present time that the Govern-
ment have not got the means to proceed with
the construction of the line. We know that
it would be criminal on the part of the Go-
vernment to make any attempt to build it,
in the present state of the finances. The
people of Port Curtis must realise what the
passage of this railway means. On the
preachings of hon. members opposite, it only
means the passing of the railway as a matter
of form, and does not mneceszarily mean
the construction of the railway. The electors
of Port Curtis will be able to judge for them-
selves of the true meaning of this proposition
at this particular stage. But apart from
that, the construction of this railway is by
no means justified. A single glance at the
map is enough to convince any hon. member
that the construction of this line is not in
‘the best interests of Queensland. For years
the opening of the Upper Burnett district by
a_ railway_ has been well discussed; it was
discussed by a special committee of experts
appcinted for the purpose, and I am in a
position to say, as one who had a special
opportunity of having it discussed by the
land settlement experts of the State in
connection with the land policy of the State,
that the construction of a line from Mun-
«dubbera is more in the interests of the State
than this railway would be, as it will more
veadily open up the land required for the
purposes of settlement. Everyone knows
‘the nature of the country over which the
proposed railway will have to pass,
everyone realises what its construction means
in money, and how little it will do to accom-
plish the result that is claimed for it. I
think it is a waste of the time of hon.
members to put this railway before the
House. It is simply political fireworks, as
evervone must know who realises what is the
condition of the finances of the State at the
present time. The Minister knows perfectly
well that he has not the money to spend
-one pingle pound on tho construction, or the
commencement of the construction, of this
Iine, unless he is prepared to take it from
moneys which have already been voted by
Parliament for specific purposes.

The SECRETARY ToR Ratmwavs: Don’s you
%now that it will be some months before

and -
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this Parliament will meet again, and that
there may be any amount of money before
that?

ar, MACARTNEY : Are the Government
going to introduce a Loan Bill during the
prosent session?

The SECRETARY FOR RAILWAYS:
better ask the Treasurer that.

dr. MACARTNEY : The hon. gentleman
is not prepared to give the House any infor-
mation rogarding the construction of this
line, for the simple reason that he does not
Lnow how it is going to be built.

The SECRETARY TOR RAILWAYS: There are
quite a number of ways in which the Govern-
ment can get moeny.

Mr. MACARTNEY : The Government can
only get money from loan trust funds, Large
sums of loan moneys have already been
diverted to purposcs other than those for
which they were appropriated. Until e
Live some information as to what provision
is going to be made for building this line,
or some undertaking that moneys already
appropriated by Parliament for specific pur-
poses will not be diverted from those pur-
poses, we should not pass this motion.
Surely there is enough fc be done by the
House withous wasting time over such a
motion just now.

Mr. HODGE (Yanango): It seems to me
that this is a motion which I ought not to
allow to pass without some comment, more
particularly as prior to the representation
of the Burnett by the member who is respon-
sible for the amendment, I represented that
part of the Burnett electorate. There is no
doubt that at that time—1912—the question
as to how the Burnett district should be
developed was a moot question. T advocated
very strongly a proposition which would have
been carried through were it not for the
finding of an expert committee which was
appointed by the Government to inquire
into the matter of building a line from Wolea
to Dalgangal. That line was necessary if we
were to maintain the principle of decentral-
isation. Bundaberg has a perfect right to
the trade of its own hinterland. That pro-
position, however, was turned down, and
another proposition was made which the bulk
of the people seemed to be perfectly satis-
fied with, and that was a proposition to
extend the line from Bundaberg to tap the
line which is at present in operation between
Mundubbera and Maryborough.

Mr, CarTer: It is nearly the same as the
one you advocated.

Mr. HODGE: I can understand the posi-
tion the hon. member has taken up, seeing
that he represents Port Curtis and that they
have a splendid port at Gladstone, but why
do not the Cladstone people go Westward
Ho? If you look at the map, you will see
that the line which it is now proposed to
build runs due south. #

Mr. Camter: It is going to the nearest
deepwater port.

Ar. HODGE: This matter was hung up
when I was member for the Burnett. when
an extension was proposed from Wolca to
Dalgangal, and it was hung up on the evi-
dence taken by an expert commission. At
that tims we had no Public Works Commis-
sion in operation. The Public Works Com-
mission have not been asked a question about
the line proposed by the Government. All

Mr. Hodge.]

You had
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the amendment means is that the proposi-
tion should be placed before the Public
Works Commission in order that they may
examine the district, take evidence, and
report on the proposal If they do, I am
perfectly satisfied that this line will not go
through. But the Government are not game
to refer it to the Public Works Commission
which they themselves appointed. The Pre-
mier took exception the other day to the
constitution of a Select Committee appointed
by the Upper House on the ground that the
members were partisand. The members of
the Public Works Commission have been ap-
pointed from the Government side of the
House, but I am not prepared to say that
they are partisans. Is it because the Go-
vernment are afraid of the verdict of the
Public Works Commission that they have
not referred this line to them?

The Premier: That is only a suggestlon
to delay the proposal.

Mr. HODGE: Well, it is just as well that
it should be delayed.

T(Iiw Prenigr: That is what you are trying
to do.

Mr. HODGE: No. The House has passed
another proposal to construct a line from
Mundubbera to Eidsvold. Why is the con-
struction of that line not gone on with?
You have the evidence before you that the
people who were in a sense objecting to the
construction of the line from Wolca to Dal-
ganal are perfectly satisfied. I do not say
that the hon. member for Port Curtis is not
perfectly within his rights in advocating the
claims of his constituency.

Mr. Camter: I am advocating what is
right in the interests of the State.

Mr. HODGE: You are taking a very paro-
chial view of it when you advocate the con-
struction of this line, because it is coming
down and robbing the hinterland of Bunda-
berg. If you look at the map on the wall
you will see that the railway is coming due
south and robbing the hinterland of Bunda-
berg. 'This railway should be submitted to
the Public Works Commission. Why should
this proposition be held up?

The PremiEr: That is what we want to
know.

Mr. HODGE: You are holding it up,
because you ought to submit it to the Public
Works Commission and ask them to report

on it. Have they been asked to give a
report on 1t?

Mr. Morgan: No.

Mr., HODGE: All we ask is that it be

submitted to the Government’s self-appointed
commission—they cannot claim that it is a
partisan commission in any shape or form—
to make a report on it. I am personally
interested in the development of the Burnett,
and I have been very much longer associated
with the district than the hon. member for
Port Curtis. No matter how much he might
be looking forward to the carrying of this
proposal for the development of the North-
ern Burnett, it must be remembered that
there are other proposals which will serve
the people very much better than the one
before us now. Why does not the Govern-
ment accept the amendment moved by the
hon. member for Burnett, who_ is infinitely
more concerned in this matter than the hon,
member for Port Curtis? It is his business,
and he only asks what he has a perfect

[Mr. Hodge.
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right to expect at the hands of the Govern-
ment—that is, a report by the Public Works
Commission which the Government cannot
possibly say is a partisan commission. It
is an awful pity that this proposition has.
cropped up at this time, and that other pro-
posals that have been advanced in connection
with the opening up of the Upper Burnett
have not been given effect to. At one time
I took exception to the extension of the line
from Mundubbera to Eidsvold, advocating,
as I did at the time, an extenslon from

Wolea to Dalgangal. Dalgangal is the
objective.
Mr. CarTeR: Look at the range of moun-

tains it would have to cross.

Mr. HODGE: The mountain that would
have to be crossed is nothing in comparison
to the Dawes Range that has to be crossed
by the present proposal.

Mr. CartEr: Yes it is; you look at
Phillips’s report.

Mr. HODGE: I have read Phillips's
report. 1 challenge the Premier or the

Minister for Railways to say that the Public
Works Commission has been asked to give a
report on this matter. They have not, and
that being so, why not submit this question
to them when it has been submitted to
investigation on two other different occasions
and turned down? T have read the reports of
that commdssion in connection with other
proposals in the Burnett district very care-
fully, and I must say that their reports
have been most fair. Then why not give
them an opportunity of bringing in a fair
report on this proposal? They have not been
asked to inquire into the maiter, but the
Government are going to ram the proposal
down our throats and bludgeon it through
with their brutal majority.
The PreMiER: That is not the position.

Mr. HODGE: That is the position. The
Government should certainly keep to the
conditions laid down when this commission
was appointed, when they said any proposi-
tion 1involving the expenditure of over
£20,000 would be submitted to the Public
Works Commission, If that were done, I am
petjectly satisfied it would meet with the
approval of hon. members on this side.

Mr. BARNES: It is difficult to believe
that the Goverement can possibly be serious
in bringing down a proposal of this nature
for the third time when one can find nothing
to really recommend the proposition.

Mr., CarTER: You do not know anything
about it.
Mr. BARNES: It would be a good deal

better for the hon. member for Port Curtis
if he understood a little more about it I
notice that less than five months ago he
quoted an authority, confirming his ideas, he
thought, regarding the construction of this
line. He quoted Mr. Phillips. I happen
to have before me at the moment a report
from Mr. Phillips regarding this very matter.
On the 28th February, 1910, Mr. Phillips.
stated that—

“He had been over the Dawes Range
from Many Peaks to Cania and Cannin-
dah, and found it very difficult country,
rlsmg 1,000 feet or more above the. ter.-
minus of the Many Peaks Railway.
Therefore the line would be very ex-
pensive to build and would have no-
country to serve. As his original
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instructions were to see if a railwav could
be got to connect the North Burnett
with the North Coast Line, he paid
particular attention to this route and
was quite satisfied that it was out of the
question.”

Mr. Carter: They paid him to do that.

Mr. BARNES: It is all very well for the
hon. member to sit on that cushion there and
make statements which cannot be supported,
but which can be contradicted by the very
authority he appealed to. The singular
thing regarding this matter is this: the hon.

member for Fitzroy might have

[9 pm.] been a statesman a short time

ago, and just for a short time he
was a sbatesman, because he dealt with
matters that should receive atbention by this
Chamber, but which have not received the
attention of this Chamber. The hon. mem-
ber expressed the opinion that one of the
things that should receive the attention of
Parliament was the question of developing
our varied producing interests, Surely we
should give our attention to that matter,
But almost immediately he forgot he was a
statesman and became a veritable man.

The PreMIER: You admit he is a states-
man, but he forgot it for a moment.

Mr. BARNES: He forgot it for a moment,
and I expect he will forget it for all time.
He forgot himself for the moment and
adopted a regrettable attitude in regard to
Mr. Kessell, who was presented with a sum
of £50 on a recent occasion, According to
the * Gladstone Observer’’ of Wednesday,
10th October, we find that Mr. Kessell said—

“He predicted a great future for
Mount Larcom and Bracewell when the
scrub lands were thrown open and
developed under sane legislation. He
had been speaking to the trustees of the
hall and he (the speaker) had now
decided to release them from all financial
responsibility, which amounted to about
£45, by malking the trustees of the hall
a present of this sum for the sake and
in honour of the brave boys from the
Fra(%e’\yell district who had gone to the
ront.

The hon. member became very little indeed
when he spoke in the way he did.

Mr. H. L. HarTLEY :
of Mr. Kessell.

Mr. CARTER interjected.
Mr. BARNES: The hon. member who

interjects so continuously, when spraking
on the subject last night, dealt in a very
practical way, according to his own showing,
with the timber and mineral resources of the
district.  Apparently, from what we can
hear, according to the Commissioner’s report,
the timber will form——

 Mr. CurTER: You believe in the Commis-
sioner because he gave you £5,000 for land
worth £300.

Mr. BARNES: He never paid me a penny
for that.

Mr. Camrter: Yes, he did. You know all
about it.

Mr. BARNES: If the hon. member can

prove that he paid me a penny for the land,
I will retire from this Chamber at once.

u Mr. CAR’{IE}R: He gave you value; that is
ne same thing.

I have little opinion
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At ten minutes to 9 o’clock,
The SpEaAKER resumed the chair,

Mr. BARNES: The value of the hon.
member’s noisy interjections, who advocates
the line on account of the great quantities of
ore and immense areas of timber which will
provide traffic, may be discounted when you
remember two things: first, according to
the Commissioner’s report a great deal of
the timber has already been ringbarked;
and, secondly, when you come to the matter
of minerals, the hon. member himself, on
21st September, 1915, referring to some of
the lodes there said—

“I may say that these copper lodes
are small shows of rich copper, and
would be worked by small parties of
men who would take their ore to a
smelting works as they are doing at the
present time. If a line were built near
to them they would send copper ore there
at a much lower percentage.”

You find that the hon. member, when speak-
ing before the Select Committee, indicated
tha! there were certain small lodes.

Mr. CarTER: In addition to those there
are certain small lodes,

Mr. BARNES: You understand better
the hon. member’s advocacy of a line which
is not going to pay. Last night he said the
timber was going to be a considerable asset.
However, we can understand now that there
is not much in that. Is it a fair thing to
come down at a time like we are passing
through. with any number of railways still
unbuilt, and with obligations arising out of
promises made to the people in the Mundub-
bera district alone that if they settled there
the railway would be built. Have not this
Government, because they were parties to
the passing of that line when they were in
Opposition, the right to honour the promises
of previous Parliaments in this way?

The PreMiEr: The late Government passed
sixteen railways on the eve of an election.

Mr. BARNES: Just now someone made
light of that wonderful railway proposition,
the via recta, and vet several hon. members
on the opposite side who now support the
Government voted for that line—namely,
Messrs. Land, Bertram, the late respected
David Bowman, and Mr. John Adamson,
who was then a member of the House.

The SecRETARY FOoR PrpLic Laxps: Mr.
Adamson apologised in doing it.

Mr., BARNES: In these cdays of stress,
when the exchequer is practically empty and
we can scarcely see further in front of us
—as far as loan expenditure goes—than our
hand, is it fair to ask this House to pass a
railway which, according to the Commis-
sioner, will pay 4 per cent. on the cost of
construction? Is it a fair thing, when rail-
ways are going to the bad and earning only
£2 per cent., to be asked to pass a rallwqy
which_ will only earn & per cent.? I will
give the Commissioner’s concluding words—

“ The country is good and should in
time provide a good traffic to the rail-
way. Unfortunately, owing to the char-
acter of the country, the cost of con-
struction is very high. It will, therefore,
be many years before the traffic wiil be

Mr. Barmes.]
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sufficient to pay working expenses and
interest unless 1t is extended into and
develops the Upper Burnett country,
which will bring the traffic of this exten-
sive, rich district to its natural port—
Gladstone; and for this reason I recom-
mend it.”

That is not a sufficient recommendation to
lead the Committee to vote half a million of
money for the construction of a railway
that i1s going to pay one-half per cent.

Mr., CartER: How much would the via
recta pay? The Commissioner would not
recommend it at all,

Mr. BARNES: The via recta had £117,000
worth of traflfic to start with. It would have
been a paying concern from the jump. There
is no proposition in Queensland which is
better than the via recta. I take it that the
first duty of this Government, or any Govern-
ment, is to honour the obligations which
exist in regard to railways which have
already been passed. The real business
course for any Government to follow is to
complete lines already in course of construc-
tion. or to connect them with the nearest
point at which there is construction, so that
they may be paying concerns.

The SECRETARY rOR RarLwayvs: Why was
the 2ount Sylvia not built after being
passed ?

Mr. CARTER:

How about the railway to
Maryvale?

There is nothing in that now.

Mr. BARNES: That is part and parcel of
the Warwick to Maryvale and Mount Ed-
wards to Munbilla proposal; simply waiting
‘co”complete a length of line of about 400
miles.

Mr. C4r1ER: The Commissioner would not
recommend it.

Mr. BARNES: The proposal is not a fair
and reasonable one, and those to whom they
apply for money will have little confidence in
people who have the audacity to come down
and table railways which, according to the
very best and most conservative showing—

if you like to put it that way—will only pay
one-half per cent.

The SucrETARY FOR PuUBLIC LANDS:
will it only pay that?

Mr. BARNES: I would like to ask the
hon. gentleman that.

Why

. The SecreTarYy FOR PUBLIC LANDS: Because
it is going to open up new territory.

Mr. BARNES: The Commissioner states
that it will only pay one-half per cent.

Mr. CarTER : The Commissioner stated that
the via recta should not be built.

Mr. BARNES: It is just as well to save
the Government from facing, in connection
with Cannindah and these places, what we
are facing regarding other railways. The
Mundubbera people were promised a rail-
way. and they are not getting it. These
people are going to be promised a railway
i order to help, possibly, the constituency
of the hon. member for Port Curtis: and
they will ask you to come down and fulfil
your promise, which you have not done.

Hon. J. A. FiHELLY: A scandalous sug-
gestion.

tAf», Barnes.
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Question—That the words proposed to be
omitted (Mr. Corser’s amendment) stand part

of the question—put; and the House
divided : —
Aves, 29.
Mr. Armfield Mr., May
, Carter ,» McLachlan
,» Collins ;s McPhail
5» Cooper 5 O'Sullivan
s Coyne » Payne
5, Foley ,» Pollock
,. Forde ,» Ryan,
,, Gilday ., yan, H. J.
,» Gillies .. Ryan, T. J.

,o Gledson ,»  ~mith

,, Hardacre ., Htopford
,» Hartler, H. L. . Welr
,, Hunter ,» Wellington
,. Kirwan .. Winstanley
,» Lloyd
Tsllers: Mr, Lloyd and Mr. Weir.
NoEgs, 16.
Mr. Barnes Mr. Murphy
,» Behbington ,, Petrie
. Corzer ,» Roberts
,s Gunn . Somerset
,» Hodge s Stevens
,» Macartney Stodart
. Moore ,» Tolmie
., Morgan ,» Vowles

Tellers: Mr. Gunn and Mr. Roberts.

Pairs.

Ayes—Mr. Huxham, Mr. Wilson, and Mr. Free.
Noes—Mr. Bayley, Mr. Grayson, and Mr. Appel.

Resolved in the affirmative.
Original question put and passed.

COMMITTEE.
(My. Bertram, Maree, in the chair.)

The SECRETARY FOR RAILWAYS: I
beg to move—

“1. That the House approves of the
plan, section, and book of reference of
the proposed railway extension from
Many Peaks to New Cannindah, in
length 27 miles 53 chains.

2. That the plan, section, and book
of reference be forwarded to the Legisla-
tive Council for their approval by
message in the usual form.”

I have sat here and listened very patiently
to the arguments used by the hon. gentlemen
on the opposite side of the House in con-
nection with this railway; and it appeared
to me that they approached the question
altogether from a very parochial point of
view. It has been the custom of this House
—_as has been stated by one hon. member on
the opposite side—that all these matters
should be approached from a national point
of view. It is from that point of view that
I propose to approach this question to-night.
A good many itatements have been made by
hon. members that do not bear strict investi-
gation. This thing is not a new question to
the Houss; this has been a fair time before
the House. and on two occasions it was
passed by this Flouse. On the last occasion
it was passed by the House and submitted
to the Legislative Council, and they appointed
a Select Committee to inquire into it by
calling evidence, and they decided unfavour-
ably towards the proposition. Four days
afterwards the matter was remitfed to the
Select Committee, and further evidence was
called, and then the majority of the Select
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Committee decided in favour of the railway.
Howerver, it was fired out by the Legislative
Council.  Now, Mr. Bertram, notwithstand-
ing what hon. members on the opposite side
‘have said about this railway, in my opinion
—looking at it from a national pomt of
view—it will be a good thing for Queensland
if this railway is constructed.

fie mineral belt that it would tap is a
very rich one, and I have got proof of that.
Before going any [urther, I may say that I
have not been over this route myself, but I
have gone to some trouble in getting facts
and data that I propose to put before the
Clamamittee this evening. I have proof of the
miners! wealth of the district, about which
there is no gainzaying. The line will go
within 65 miles of the Glazsford Creek mines.
The companies mining on Glassford Creek
propcse to build a tramway 6% miles in
Iength to connect with this line. That will
mean that the spzsmodic mining whick has
been going on there for a long time, owing
to the expense of conveying their ores to
Many Peaks, will be stopped, as this railway
will give a stimulus to mining, which will be
carried on there on an extensive scale. The
cost of carrying the ore over the 12 miles
from Glassford Creek to Manv Peaks is
£1 10s. per ton. That is a very serious
impost on ore of a low quality, and there-
fore many thousands of tons of low-grade
ore are lying on the fields, That ore is not
being utilised at all, owing to the high cost
of carriage, but when the tramway is built
to connect with this line it will mean that
hundreds of thousands of tons of ore will
be_conveyed over the line and brought to a
point where it can be smelted and utilised,
and bring an imwmense amount of wealth
into the district. The Mount Cannindah
mine has been referred to by hon. members
as not being of much account. This line will
Hass within 1§ miles of the Mount Cannindah
mine, At present the distance of the mine
from Many Peaks is 17 miles, and the cost
of conveying the ore there is £2 10s. per ton.
That is also a big impost on the low-grade
ore there. It is only the higher quality ore
that is conveyed by teams to the railway to
be carried away to be smelted. I have got
the latest copy of the * Queensland Mining
Journal,”” dated 15th -October. No hon.
member present will question the accuracy
of the statements made in this journal In
speaking of the New Canindah lease, it
states—

¢ MouUNT CANNINDAH.

“This district, during the quarter,
gave employment to some forty miners,
and consignments of ore were despatched
from the Mount Cannindah, Apple Tree,
Mount Theodore, and Myra mines

“Twenty-nine men are emploved on
this property. During the quarter 124.75
tons of ore were treated from this mine
for a return of 23.52 tons copper, valued.
at £2,705, and 13.3 ounces gold, valued
at £56.”

The hon. member for Warwick said there
was no land for close settlement. The Mount
Cannindah mine is capable of such develop-
ment that it will employ a large number of
men indeed, and produce a great amount
of wealth. The ore body is extensive and
rich in parts. With regard to Glassford
Creek, there have not been many men
emploved there, but, to show the faith and
confidence that mining investors have in
LGlassford Creek, I need only point out that
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£3.000 has been expended by the Southern
option holders in connection with this pro-
perty over and above the amount received
for the ore despatched for treatment. That
shows the corfidence they have in this field.
There is also a zinc lode within four miles
of the line. It is a large and extensive
zinc lode. It has been developed and gives
promise of producing a large quantity of
rich ore. The appearance of the lode is such
that it will produce a large quantity indeed.
A Select Commiiter was held by the Legis-
lative Council on the 21st December, 1915,
and the Under Secrctary for Public Lands,
Mr. Grahem. in giving evidence before that
committee, referred in very glowing terms
to the large quantity of timber that would
be tapped by this line. With regard to land,
the leader of the Opposition said, during this
evening, that there was very little land to
be tapped by this line, but I have proof of
the opposite. Only twelve months ago the
Under Secretary for Public Lands, who
knows his business, gave this evidence before

the Select Committee of the Legislative
Council—
“The Meny Peaks-New Cannindah

extension of 27 miles 53 chains is the
first step in the way of opening up_ the
famous Northern Burnett, than which
there is no better land for close settle-
ment in the State.”

Tt has been said that we have not got very
much timber in that locality. The line
serminates within a quarter of a mile of the
edge of Mount Cannindah pine scrub, which
is estimated at 17 miles long by miles
wide, carrying 10,000 feet of timber to the
acre; this is a low estimate—probably it
may vield double the amount. There is also
No. scrub, known as Pine Mountain,
within easy reach of this line, which is esti-
mated to contain 70,000,000 feet. There is
also a very large arca of open forest country,
on which it is estimated there is at least
10,000,000 feet of hardwood, comprising
some of the best varieties, such as ironbark,
spotted gum, ete.

The Under Secretary for Lands, in his
evidence before the Select Committee,
amongst other things says—

“ Hundreds of thousands of acres can
be made available by further extension
to this line, but the present proposal,
besides opening up copper deposits at
Cannindah, will bring within reasonable
distance of a railway for settlement pur-
poses 206,432 acres of land immediately
available for selection, besides 58,240
acres held under lease, and 128,900 acres
held under grazing selection, which could
be resumed, and 14,157 acres of timber
lands within proclaimed State forest
reserves. It may possibly be argued that
this is an expensive line to construct,
but, again, this must be borne in mind—
that it is the shortest route from the
Northern Burnett to Gladstone, the best
natural port on the Queensland coast.
This alone will be an inestimable benefit
to the settlers for all time, as it will
give them excellent shipping facilities
for their produce and also be a consider-
able saving to them in railway freights.
T inspected all that country nearly two
vears ago. There is nothing better for
close settlement that I have ever seen,
and I have seen a good deal of Queens-
land, within the Northern Burnett. 1%
may be said, in rough figures, that in the

Hon. J. H. Coyne.]
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Northern Burnett there are 4,000,000
acres of land that could be made suitable
for close settlement—that is, land that
could be profitably occupied in areas of
about 160 acres. There is no part of
Queensland that I know of where thers
is such a vast tract of excellent country
in one block that could be more profit-
ably developed for close settlement than
the Northern Burnett. As I pointed out
in the statement that I have put in,
Gladstone is the natural port for the
Northern Burnett,”

Then later on he says—

“ There is no country that I know of
that is better adapted for close settle-
ment. It is beautifully watered, and all
the creeks are running streams. There
are small scrubby ridges and beautiful
rich scrubs running right through it.
Other ridges are beautifully grassed and
good grazing country, and sloping down
to beautiful river flats that will grow
lucerne on all the running streams. On
¢ Clonmel,” which will come within the
influence of this railway, I never saw
more ideal country for general farming
and closer settlement. It is beautifully
watered and you could make most ideal
farms there; you could give grass land
and scrub land with lucerne flats that
will grow anything.”

That is pretty definite as to the area and
the fertility of the land that can
[9.30 p.m.] be made available there. The
leader of the Opposition, the late
Secretary for Public Lands, also gave some
evidence. He was asked—

“Is this the best route by which to
open that country ?”

And he replied—

“ It is the nearest route to the natural
port.”’

That is quite fair and honest, and it is
because of some of this evidence that the
Government have been prompted to bring
this railway forward again. The Hon. Mr
Tolmie also said— ’
“ Gladstone 1s a magnificent port, an

I am told by resident% of the I1)\701r’1:}1er<rix
Burnett that the country behind the
range 1s just as good as I saw in the
Northern Burnett I had anticipated
that another opportunity would be given
me of visiting that country; but, from
the information that has been given to
me, I am of opinion that some day we
must extend the vroposed line from (3lad-
stone to New Cammindah further to the
West. We are building a railway to
Taroom. and Took at the distance the
people between Taroom and the Divide
have to travel to reach Brisbane. Some
day a line must be built from Gladstone
through to Tarcom for the sake of pro-
viding these people with cheap com-
munication with a port.”

Everything that was said in evidence on that
occasion goes to show the great necessity
for and the wisdom of building this railway.
It is not going to be merely a branch. I
take it that if this line is built—and I have
no reason to think otherwise just now——it
will be one of the great railway arteries
extending right into the centre of Queensland
and bringing freight to one of the best, if
not absolutely the best port in Australia, a

[Hon. J. H. Coyne.
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port that ranks amongst the very highest
in the world. Experts have said, when com-
paring it with Sydney, that, good as Port
Jackson is, Gladstone is even better for
developmental purposes, because it can be
better worked. Sydney Harbour is rocky
and it is very hard to deal with that class of
bottom, whereas in Gladstone you have deep
water surrounded by soft muddy flats tha
can be utilised for numerous purposes in
navigation.

The estimated cost of this line has increased
since it was last before the Chamber by
£65,755. That is due to the increased cosb.
of material owing to the war, to the increase
ir; the rates of wages of construction workers,
and to insurance of labour and other privi-
leges. We are not alone in that position.
Hon. members who looked at the paper this-
morning saw the great difference between
the estimated cost of the Kast-West Aus-
tralian Railway and the actual cost. The
estimate was about £4,000,000 and the actual
cost—and it is not nearly ballasted—some-
thing in the vieinity of £8,000,000, or nearly
100 per cent. more,

Mr. BEBBINGTON : A very bad estimate.

The SECRETARY FOR RAILWAYS:
The hon. member does not understand what
he is talking about. Since that railway was.
commenced, the cost of material, of labour,
of everything in connection with it has risen
so enormously that no human being could
have accurately sstimated what the cost
would be. And it was the same with all
railways that were commenced before or
shortly after the commencement of the war.
Matters go through my hands every week
which show me that careful estimates made
twelve months ago have been considerably
increased, so much so that on two or three
occasions I have sont them back to ascertain
if there was not a mistake.

Mr. BEBRINGTON: And yet your
want food at pre-war rates!

The SECRETARY FOR RAILWAYS:

.
unions

The hon. member is doing very well out of

war rates. I do not want to drift into that
subject at the present moment; I shall have
the opportunitv of dealing with it later on.
The one great argument used by members
against this railvay was that the Commis-

_sioner said it could only earn 10s. per cent.

The Mungar Junection to Mundubbera line,
which it was proposed by the amendment of
the hon. member for Burnett to extend. is
only now paving 8. 2d.. and the leader of
the Oppositicn, in giving his evidence here
less than twelve months ago, said—

“We had reports with regard to open-
ing un the countrv around Moon Creek
and Splinter Creek from Maryborough,
but there is 20 miles of bad country be-
tween Mundubbera and Eidsvold.”

And yet the hon. member wants to extend it
another 20 miles over bad country that
would produce next to nothing, and make the
producing part of the line worse than it is
to-day. This is a far better proposition. We
had the evidence of the leader of the Opposi-
tion, of the Under Secretary for Lands, and
of all our experts that the country west of
New Cannindah in the direction of the
Lower Dawson, which could be tapped by
an extension of this line, is absolutely the
bhest and richest and most fertile part of
Queensland.

Mr. MoreHY: There is no doubt that yow
are very eloquent.
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The SECRETARY FOR RAILWAYS: I
do not profess to be eloquent, but I do think
that any hon. member who locks at this
from a national point of view—as I am
endeavouring, I think, successfully to look
at it—must agree that when we have such
possibilities in the hinterland of the beauti-
ful port of Gladstone, and when, some day
—1I hope in the not distant future—we will
not only be producing sufficient of a number
of our products for our own requirements,
but a large quantity for exporting purposes—
I think every member must agree that this
is a good proposition. Can you find any
better spot on the coast of Queensland for
such trade as that than Gladstone? We have
the evidence of the maize-producing qualities
of the soil near Cannindah and further
west, and that is a product we can profitably
export.

Mr. BaRNES: You cannot export maize.

The SECRETARY FOR RAILWAYS:
Sometimes there is a great scarcity in New
Zealand and other countries, and you can
profitably export it, and I believe that this
war will ensure a greater consumption of
maize by reason of the numerous ways in
which it is manufactured.

Mr. Morean: It will not keep unless you
tank it.

The SECRETARY FOR RAILWAYS:
Meat will not keep unless you have refrigera-
ting space, but we find such things provided
for transporting these products over the sea.
Considering that the fine port of Gladstone
has been criminally neglected by previous
Governments, I think it is only right that
we should now take a hand in giving it its
due, and at the same time try to improve
the position of Queensland—because we will
be improving it if we can find a deepwater
port at the nearest port to the Panama
Canal, the entrance to the great waterway
of the world. This is a port second to none
in Australia, and surely it is worth our while
to do something to develop it and its hinter-
land, and not to put any penalty or impost
on the people who engage in industry there
by making them go a roundabout way to a
port or put extra freights on their produce
when we can get it to the port of Gladstone,
which will be navigable to the largest ships
to take it to any part of the world.

My. BEBBINGTON: Does not Gladstone rob
Rockhampton ?

The SECRETARY FOR RAILWAYS: I
do not think it robs it very much at all.
Rockhampton has its own hinterland, and
Gladstone should have its own hinterland. It
has been robbed of it in the past. I think
that when the facts I have placed before
‘the Committee are taken into consideration,
if they can only divest their minds of paro-
chial feeling and approach the question from
the Australian national point of view, they
must agree that it is a good proposition, not
only for the port of Gladstone, but for the
whole of the people of Queensland and for
the people of Australia. I want to refer to
an argument which was used a little while
ago with reference to the great expense of
constructing this line over Dawes Range.
The average cost of this line will be between
£16,000 and £17,000 per mile, according to
the latest estimate. If that is an argument
why the line should not be built, then the
Toowoomba line over the Dividing Range
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should never have been constructed, because
it cost twice that amount, The Toowoomba
Railway and the Cairns Railway cost a little
over £29,000 per mile, and that was a good
many years ago, when the cost of railway
material was nothing like it is at the present
time, and the cost of labour was only about
one-third of what it is in the North to-day.
Cairns, Townsville, Rockhampton, and Mac-
kay have railway communication with their
hinterland. For what reason has the port
of Gladstone been robbed of its rights in that
respect up to the present time? I say that
the Government are deserving of all honour
for bringing forward this proposition once
more, and endeavouring to give an oppor-
tunity to the people in the hinterland of
Gladstone to reach that natural and valuable

port. I have much pleasure in moving the
motion. (Hear, hear!)
Mr. MURPHY: I think we must con-

gratulate the Secretary for Railways upon:
the speech which he has delivered on this-
railwey with the meagre information at his
command.

The SECRETARY FOR RATLWAYS: T have heaps-
of information here.

Mr. MURPHY: And the information
which is available to the hon. gentleman
was available to the Commissioner for Rail-
ways, and what does he say about this pro-
position? Did he recommend the construction:
of the line? Not at all.

The SecrETARY FOR PuBLIc LanDs: Use
your own judgment; never mind the Com-
missioner for Railways.

The SECRETARY FOR PTUBLIC INSTRUCTION :
It is only the opinion of one man.

Mr. MURPHY: I am using my own
judgment, and my own judgment tells me
that at this particular time, when money is
so scarce and so dear, and when many rail-
ways already passed are waiting to be con-
structed, if I were to vote for this line at
the present time I certainly would not be-
dealing with the question from a national
standpoint. The hon. gentleman says we
ought to deal with it from a national stand-
point. What is the national standpoint ab
the present time?

The SECRETARY FOR PuUBLIC Lanps: To opem:
up more land.

Mr. MURPHY : I am glad of that inter-
jection from the Secretary for Public Lands.
To open up more land, to settle more people-
on the land, and the finances of Queensland
show that we have already expended some-
thing like forty millions of money in railway
construction and have got a population of
650,000

The SEcRETARY For PuBLIC LanDs: This is.
our own land—Crown land.

Mr. MURPHY: Let me deal with that
phase of the question. Members opposite:
have been assuring the House and the coun-
try that this proposal will have the effect of
placing millions of acres of land on the
market cheaply for settlement. Our railway
receipbs last year show a loss of :£780,000
odd, and I say it is the duty of the Govern-
ment to bring under settlement the land
along the railways which have already been
constructed, and to make those railways pay-
able before they agree to expend another

. Mr. Murphy.)
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half-a-million of money in building another
railway with a prospect of some time later
enabling some settlers to take up land in this
particular district.

_ The SECRETARY FOR PrBLIC INSTRUCTION :
The land tax will do that.

~ Mr, MURPHY : If the land tax is going
te bring so much land under settlement, what
necessity is there, at a time when money is
so dear, for building a railway like this?
We are_told that milliors of acres of land
are availab'e for settlement.

The SroreETARY FOR PuBLic LANDS: Where
are they?

Mr. MURPHY: I do not know. The
Secretary for Lands ought to know whero
the lands are to which reference is made in
the directory which is published under his
own control.

The Secrrrary FOR PusLic Laxps: I want
you to indicate in what districts this land
1s available.

Mr. MURPHY : If the hon. gentleman is
particularly anxious to know where settle-
ment can be brought about, let him inquire
of the hon. member for Eacham, Mr. Gillies,
the chairman of the Public Works Com.
mission. Let him learn from that hon.
member that there is plenty of land for
settlement in the Atherton district.

The SECRETARY FOR PUBLIC INSTRUCTION :
Near market?

Mr. MURPHY : Ves.

. The SEcRETARY FOR PUBLIC Lawps: There
is no better land in Queensland than the land
which this railway will open up.

Mr. MURPHY: I have never been over
the land, and I am not qualified to express
an opinion about the quality of the land.

The SECRETARY FOR PuBLIC LaNDS : The only
thing approaching it is Mount Hutton.

Mr. MURPHY : I am not going to argue
the question of Mount Hutton, as I do not
profess to be a land expert. We are told
that there is a considerable amount of land
in the Atherton district that would be selected
if the Government would fulfi] its promises
and continue the Millaa Millaa Railway.
The hon. member for Eacham has repeatedly
told us that, and he used to say it time after
‘time when he was in opposition. We know
the Atherton district is excellent country.
Then I have heard the hon. member for
Bowen refer to the land in his own district
which is available for settlement.

The SeCRETARY FOR PusLic IN N
Ereotols SRELs NSTRUCTION : All

Mr. MURPHY: How many millions of
acres of freehold land are there in Queens-
land to-day? About six per cont. of the
land has been alienated.

The Sucrersry ror PusLic Laxps: You
cannot get Crown lands without building
railways.

Mr. MURPHY : What is the good of the
Sec_retary for Public Lands asking us to
believe in one policy one day, and then, to
suit the convenience of the Government, tell
us that we must build railways to get
‘Crown lands. One day they assure the Honso
and_the country that the introduction of the
dand tax is going to put millions of agres

[Mr. M urphy.
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into occupation and bring about a large
population; and next day they ask us to
spend thousands of pounds on a railway at
a time like this, at war time, at a time when
the Treasurer has had to go to Melbourne to
interview the Commonwealth Treasurer on
financial matters, at a time when the Com-
monwealth Government has announced that
next year, owing to financial stress in the
world, they will be unable to complete their
agreement with the State Governments.

Mr. PorLLock: That is not so.

Mr, MURPHY: The Commonwealth Go-
vernment have notified the States that next
year they are only going to give them half
the amount that they had previously agreed
upon.

The PREMIER:
notified us.

Mr. MURPHY : They may not have offi-
cially notified the Government, but we saw
the notification in the Press, together with
some criticisms of the Treasurer in regard
to the action of the Commonwealth Trea-
surer. In dealing with the proposition the
Minister never told the Chamber whether—
if we pass this railway—there is a possibility
of it being commenced, or whether it will be
added to the long list of unbuilt railways.

The SrCRETARY FOR RAlLwavs: What you
have to consider is the utility of this rail-
way, and leave the finding of the money to
the Government.

Mr. MURPHY: We are to vote ““ on the
blind,”” and add another railway to the long
list of railways already passed by this House
which have not been commenced, and which
cannot be commenced, because, on the autho-
rity of the head of the Railway Department,
there is neither money nor material for their
construction.

The SecReTarRy FoR Pusric Lanps: This
railway is part of a proposal for the settle-
ment of returned soldiers. It was arranged
at the Premiers’ conference last January.
The settlement of 5,000,000 acres of land is
depending on the construction of this railway.

Mr. MURPIY: Every proposal for the
expenditure of huge sums of money in Aus-
tralia to-day—we are told—is ‘“in the in-
terests of the returned soldier.” Put the
returned soldier into the outback districts
seems to be the motto of Governments.

Mr. CarteER: This is not an outback dis-
trict. It is within 80 miles of Gladstone.

Mr. MURPHY: Yes, when the line is
constructed. If we are to look at it from a
national standpoint, no one could honestly
vote for the construction of the line. .

The PrEMIER: We are bound to vote for
it: it is to make land available for returned
soldiers.

Mr. MURPHY : It is a remarkable thing
that this is the first occasion, so far as I am
aware, that the soldier has been brought into
it.

The PreEmMiER: No. I referred to that
matter when it was turned down by the
Council previously. I can show it to you in
““Hansard.”

Mr. MURPHY: The soldier goes away
and fights for us, and in Parliament. and
out of Parliament, we use the soldier to

They have not officially
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cover a multitude of political sins. This
ought not to be done. I think the best thing
Australia could do in the interests of the
soldiers, at a time like this, when money is
dear and so difficult to get, would be to see
that it was properly expended. We should
utilise the lands which are already opened
up by railways to form soldier settlements.
That would be a much better proposition
than asking this Chamber to expend half a
million on the construction of a railway at a
time when, the Secretary for Railways has
pointed out, no expert can properly estimate
the construction of any line. How can you
build a half million pound railway without
money and without material? The Cabinet
cannot explain that. T believe that the con-
tinuation of the North Coast Railway would
settle more people on the land than this line
is likely to settle. ’

Mr. CARTER: Absurd.

Mr. MURPHY : If I were to turn up the
speeches of the hon. member for Munding-
burra, and the speeches of some other hon.
members who supported that railway, the
hon. member would not regard it as an ab-
surdity.

The PreaieR: Let them all come.

Mr. MURPHY : It is all very well for the
Premier to say ¢ Let them all come.” I
would just like to point out that the Public
Works Commission refused the construction
of a railway in the Cloncurry district, which
would have given more employment, and
which would have gone into better copper
country than this railway is likely to open
up. What does the Commissioner tell us?

Mr. CARTER: What does the Commissioner
know about it?

Mr. MURPHY: If the Commissioner
knows nothing about it, what do we know
about it?

Myr. Csr1ER: What do you know about it?

Mr. MURPHY : Absolutely nothing. We
are asked to vote for this railway ‘“on the
blind.” The Government will not even ask
its own Commission to report on it. They
will not risk putting the question of the con-
struction of this line to its own Commission.

Mr. CarTeR: They had sufficient evidence
without it.

The PreMIER : The railway was decided on
before the Royal Commission was appointed.

Mr. MURPHY: There were other rail-
ways that were decided on before the Royal
Commission was appointed, but they were
:ybmitted to the commission for considera-
ion.

Mz, Carrer: Political railways.

Mr. MURPHY : I say this is a political
railway.

The PremMiER: They were railways passed
by other Governments.

Mr. MURPHY : If the Premier objects to
political railways that were passed by other
Governments

The PreEMIER: I object to them being
passed by any Government.
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Mr. MURPHY : So do I, and that is why
I am opposing this railway.

The PrevMiER: We will take carc that
there will be no political railways passed by
this Government.

Mr. MURPHY : In connection with this
railway there is going to be an expenditure
of £500.000, and an snnual loss of £20,000;
and, although every member on that side of
the Chamber is going to get behind the Sec-
retary for Railways and vote for the line,
vet the Premier says it is not a political
railway. Well, the hon. gentleman is
entitled to his opinion, and I also claim the
right to be entitled to mine.

Myr. GUNN (Carnarvon): I think the Sec-
retary for Railways made a very good argu-
ment out of a very bad case; but I agree
with the hon. member for Burke that this

is no time to waste the time of

[10 p.m.] the House or the country in dis-

cussing @ railway which we have
no money to build, which we have no inten-
tion of building, and which we have no
material to build. When the present occu-
pants of the Treasury benches were on this
side, they used to say, ¢ How can we vote
for this or that railwar when we have no
report from a Royal Commission?” Now
that they have this wonderful Royal Com-
mission, they make no use of it, but bring
forward this railway proposal, and say it 1s
the best line in the whole lot. Before we
go on with any more railways, and before I
support any more rgilways, 1 want to see a
start made on a vailway that was passed
unanimously by this House two or three
vears ago—the railway from Inglewood to
Texas. The Ruilway Commissioner reported
in favour of that railway in these words—

“ Seeing that it is expected this rail-
way will from the%start practically pay
working cxpenses“and interest on capital
invested, and that it should induce
further settlement, I recommend its con-
struction.”

Here is a railway that the Commissioner
says will almost pay right off, that will
develop a lot of mineral country, and pro-
duce metals that are wanted on the other
side of the world; yet those minerals are
allowed to remain in the ground, and the
Government now propose to construck
another line that will cost £500,000. The
railway of which I speak would only cost
£165,442, and there are 173 square miles of
leasehold ready to be cut up for the returned
soldiers, The district has the finest climate
in Queensland, and the returned soldiers
could rear families there and do well there,
and they could be settled there at much less
cost than in any other part of Queensland.
Why not build that line instead of bringing
in wild-cat schemes, and proposing to spend
large sums of money on lines when there is
no intention of building those lines?

The PreMizr: Why not build both?

Mr. GUNN: Why not build the line that
this House passed unanimously some years
ago before proposing to build political wild-
cat railways?

Mr. McPrAL: How many railways did
vour Government pass before they went out
of office? About sixteen!

Mr. Guun.]
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Mr. GUNN: The mineowners in the dis-
trict to which I allude offered to build that
railway, but the Government of the day
thought it was such a good thing that they
said they would build it as a Government
line.

The

none ?

Mr. GUNN: The deficit in the working of
our railways this last yearwas about £750,000,
and I think we should cease to build rail-
‘ways until they are nearer the paying point
than that. If we are not careful, we shall
find ourselves insolvent over our railways.
When we started to build railways in Queens-
land they were supposed to be built to get
the farmers’ produce to market. Now the
railways arc not built for that purpose at
all. They are built nowadays to get some
particular individual elected for a particular
electorate, or for the benefit of some navvies
whom the Government are inducing to come
from some other country in order to get
their votes at election time. Instead of rail-
ways being built for the people, the people
are being made use of for the railways. I
decidedly object to that, and I am going to
vote against all railways until some of the
lines, like the Texas railway, which have
been passed for years, are built.

Premier: Do you prefer both or

Mr. MORGAN (Murilla): I notice that in
the remarks made by the Secretary for Rail-
ways about this line he sensibly did not
introduce the returneds soldier. TUnfortu-
nately, that individual has been introduced
by the Premier and the Secretary for Public
Lands.

The Premier: ““ That individua! has been
introduced ” ! That is your opinion of the
returned soldier! g

Mr. MORGAXN: "gyﬁy opinion of the
returned soldier is much higher than my
opinion of the Premier. I am one of those
who object to the Premier continually sling-
ing the returned soldier across the Hoor of
this Chamber in order to get certain mea-
sures passed. In my opinion, the Premier
knows little, and cares nothing, about the
returned soldier.

The PreMiER: What is your opinion about
the man who was warned off the course at
Surat?

Mr. MORGAN: My opinion is that it is

an absolutely lying statement made by a

man who is not game to make the statement
outside this House. The same individual
refers to slanderous statements coming from
this side of the House, and yet he makes &
deliberate slanderous statement now which
I defy him to make outside the House. If
he does, I will give him an opportunity of
proving it.

Mr. Porrock:
removed now.

Mr. MORGAN: I have only been at one
race meeting in Surat in my life, and that
was a picnic meefing, and I was asked to
present the trophy, which I did. I have
never been at a race meeting there since,
unfortunately, because I have not been able
to attend. I have nothing against me in

[Mr. Gunn.

The embargo has been
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any shape or form so far as Surat or any
other racecourse in any part of Australia
is concerned.

The PremMiER: I never suggested you had,
but I heard it suggested by someone else in
tnis House.

Mr. MORGAN: I will give an opportunity
to the Premier—who is a legal man—to make
the statement in any other place than this
House, or, if he will consent not to allow the
privileges of this House to apply to the state-
ment he made to-night, I will give him an
opportunity in the law courts of proving
his statement.

The PreEMIER: I have not made the state-
ment. I accept the hon. member’s denial;
but someone else in this House made the
statement.

Mr. MORGAN: VYes, and it is like the
lying statement that was made regarding the
purchase of horses for military purposes.
That was a statement originated by the
Under Seccretary

The CHATRMAN: Order! The hon. mem-
ber must confine himself to the motion.

Mr. MORGAN: T think I have a right
to protect myself in connection with state-
ments made by the Premier.

The CHAIRMAN : Order! I have allowed
the hon. member some latitude in replying
to the Premier’s interjection. I cannot allow
him to continue to discuss that matter
further.

Mr. MORGAN: I will accept your ruling
in that particular respect. But, as you know,
somebody can interject in this Chamber about
a certain thing, whether there is any truth
in it or not.

The PreEMiER: I do not say it. The hon.
member denisd it, and I accept his denial.
That is the proper way tc deal with if.

Mr. MORGAN: The Premier’s interjection
has given me an opportunity of denying this
charge once and for all, and I challenge any
persons if they decire to continue making
these insinuations to do so in such a manner
that I will be able to take the course which
is necessary to protect myself.

We are told that this line is going wo
open up a large quantity of land for the
returned soldier. It will open up very good
land, but we have unanimously passed other
lines in this House, In connection with which
the report of the Commissioner is more
favourable than in regard to this line. I
might mention the line from Tara to Surat.
The Minister for Railways knows that there
is no better land in Queensland from a
grazing point of view for the settlement of
soldiers, and for general agricultural and
dairying settlement, yet the Government are
not able to go on with that line. They have
spent a certain amount of money in forma-
tion. They have cleared the scrub a certain
distance, and the money is wasted.

The SgCcRETARY FOR Rarrways: I told you
that I did that for the special purpose of
relieving distress.

Mr. 3MORGAN: I know what it was done
fer. It was done during the period of Mr.
Adamson’s administration.

The SrcreraRY ror Ramwavs: I did it.
You came, and I gave you that concession.
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AMr. MORGAN: I have nothing to say
:about that. A certain amount of clearing
was done from Tara towards Surat, first of
all by the late Minister, Mr. Adamson, and
continued by the present Minister. I agree
with the hon. gentleman that they went on
with a certain amount of work for relief
purposes, but the line is all overgrown again
with———

The CHAIRMAN: Order! The
member must deal with the motion.

hon.

Mr. MORGAN: I am giving this as a
reason why there is no necessity at the
present time to pass this line. We have
already passed a great number of lines on
which a certain amount of work has been
-done, but we cannot go on with them because
the Government have not got the material or
the money. There are ten or twelve lines
already pe=ted which the Minister would
construct if he had the material and the
money, but he is unable te do so. The
Government come along with this proposi-
tion, not because they think the line is likely
to Dbe constructed within the next twelve
menths, but because 27 election is coming on
shortly, and if the line is passed a certain
number of votes will be gained. We have
the same thing in the Roma district. A
line was passed from QOralla to Injune Creck.

The SecrersrY ror PrsLic Laxps: Injune
Creek is Mount Hutton.

Mr. MORGAN: Yes. The returned soldier
was introduced in respect to that line. When
it was turned down by the Upper House we
were told that the Upper House had no
respect for the returned soldier, and had
turned down a line which would open up
country for the returned soldier. The line
from Juandah to Taroom would op:n up as
much land for the returned soldier as the
line 7rom Oralla to Injune Creek, and land
equa''y as good, if not better, than Mount
Hutton.
in my opinion, when he said that the land
which it was going to open up was some of
the best land in Queensland, and that it was
only next to Mount Hutton. Surely the
Minister would not compare Mount Hutton
to the best land in Queensland for closer
settlerent. From a grazing point of view
Mount Hutton is a good proposition, but not
for the settlement of soldiers in small areas.
It would be the same failure as Jimbour is
at the precent time., Mourt Hufton is a
grazing proposition, and if the Minister
“thinks he is going to gull this House

Mr. CArTER: What has this to do with
this railway?
Mr, MORGAN: It has this much to do

with it; if the land is no better than Mount
Hutton the line has no right to be built.
This railway is not required at the present
moment, and there are others which have been
passed and which should be gone on with
and completed. When the Government are
desirous of bringing lines before the House
for the purpose of opening up new country
would be the time for bringing forward this
line, but this railway is being given prefer-
ence, simply because it is a political move
on the part of the Government supporters.
It is not that I do not desire to see this land
given railway communication, but I hope the
Council will throw this proposal out, as
they will be doing a benefit to the people of

The Minister condemned this line, -
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Queensland by so doing. because it has no
right to be placed in front of other lines
which have already been started. After
those lines have been finished this proposi-
tion will receive my support.

The SECRETARY FOR PUBLIC LANDS
(Hon. J. M. Hunter, Maranoca): It is to be
regretted that the Committee have not caught
the spirit of the Minister for Railways in
introducing this railway to the Committee.
He asked the Committee to regard it from a
national standpoint. If ever there was a time
in the history of Queensland when railways
of this description should be treated from a
national standpoint it is to-day. It is true
that a certain amount of land will be made
available on account of the land tax, but
there will not be sufficient land, I am afraid,
for the requirements of Queenslanders after
this war is over, and it will be too late after
the war is over to start building railways
into our Crown lands to make them avail-
able for the influx of settlers which will take
place. We will have a large number of our
soldiers returning to Queensland, and there
are also a large number of men coming up
from the South looking for land in Queens-
land, a comparatively large number, con-
sidering the number of men who are going
on the land at the present time are Southern
men. One of the first things that was done
when this Government came into office was
to take areas of land, such as Mount Hut-
ton, and land such as this railway will
serve, as well as the land at Bowen and
along the North Coast line. The whole of
the lands were carefully estimated as to
their value for dairying, fruitgrowing,
sugar-cane growing, or whatever purpose
they were suited for. They were carefully
picked out to ascertain the number of
selectors that could be put on those areas.
Negotiations were opened up with the
Imperial Government when Earl Grey was
in charge of that department, and he was
asking the various parts of the British
Empire to consider the question of absorbing
the ex-service men of the Empire who are
fighting in France. This Government immedi-
ately took the matter up, and, among other
lands submitted, was this particular land, I
say positively that there is no area of land
of the same dimensions, of the same quality
as this land which this railway will
open up to be found in Queensland. T will
undertake to say that a new Darling Downs
closer to a port, and a better port, will
be opened up if this line is constructed.
It is time we began this work, because the
line cannot be built in a day. The time
will come when a big demand will come on
us and we will not have the land ready. At
the Premiers’ conference last January this
land was brought under the notice of the
conference and an amount of money was set
apart at that conference for the purpose of
constructing this particular railway to open
up the land for returned soldiers. This has
not been sprung on the Committee to-night.
From the first day this Government came into
office, they took up the question of providing
land for the returned men., We have
within sight 9,000,000 acres of land. The
plans have been prepared and there is an
estimate of the cost of building the line.
How that land will be subdivided and how
the land will be settled on is all tabulated
in the Lands Office to-day. It is not sprung
on the Committee for the first time to-night.

Hon. J. M. Hunter.]
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This Committee have had this proposal before
them twice before and the Upper House
have had i,

My, MacartNey: It is like the old cry pf
“wolf.”” We don’t know when to believe it.

The SECRETARY FOR PUBLIC LANDS:
I do not know if the hon. member, when
Minister for Public Lands, cried out ‘ wolf
and pretended that his department were
going to do something that they did not
want to do.

Ar. Maoarrsey: I did nob trade on the
soldiers like you do.

The SECRETARY FOR PUBLIC LANDS:
I am not going to charge the’ hon. gentle-
man with anything, but it is not correct for
him to charge me, as Minister for Pubhc
Lands, with coming to this House and urging
it to do something which I think should not
be done. I tell this Committee that they will
be failing in their duty to this State if they
do not pass railways and assist the Govern-
ment in obtaining money to build them for
the inrush of settlement that will take place
after the war. Large numbers of men will
be looking for new homes from France, Eng-
land, United States, Canada, and elsewhere,
and if we. are prepared we will be able to
increase our population, extend the prosperity
of our State, increase our production, and
correspondingly our wealth. I hope that the
parochialism, particularly that shown by the
hon. member for Murilla, will not exert
itself to the extent of refusing to pass this
railway.
Question put and passed.

The House resumed. The CHAIRMAN re-
ported that the Committee had come to cer-
tain resolutions, and they were agreed to.

OPTICIANS BILL.
MessAGE FROM COUNCIL.

The SPEAKER announced the receipt of
a message from the Legislative Council re-
turning this Bill with amendments, in which
they invited the concurrence of the Legisla-
tive Assembly.

Ordered that the message of the Legisla-
tive Council be taken into consideration
in Commlttee on Tuesday next.

WAGES BILL.
Message FrRoM COUNCIL.

The SPEAKER announced the receipt of
a message returning this Bill with amend-
ments, in which they invited the concurrence
of the Assembly.

Ordered that the consideration of the mes-
sage in Committee be made on Order of the
Day for Tuesday next.

SPECIAL ADJOURNMENT.

The PREMIER : I beg to move—That the
House, at its rising, do adjourn till Tuesday
next,

Question put and passed.

The House adjourned at twenty-nine
minutes past 10 o’clock.

[Hon. J. M. Hunter.





